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This Annual Report presents information on Credit Suisse First Boston, a subsidiary of
Credit Suisse Group. Due to the Credit Suisse Group restructuring, announced in July
1996 and effective January 1, 1997, the data presented herein is not generally compara-
ble 1996 versus 1997. For pro-forma comparisons and commentary on resuits of busin-
ess operations, reference shouid be made to the Credit Suisse Group Annual Report
and supplementary Annual Reviews of the relevant Business Units.




1{FINANCIAL REVIEW

As highlighted on pages & and &, the current organization of the Credit Suisse Group is, in large
part, the result of a reorganization anncunced in July, 1896 that was effective as of January t,
1987. The reorganization also included a restructuring of Credit Suisse First Boston ('the Bank?)
and the addition to and subtraction from it of certain businesses. Because the reorganization was
effective as of January 1, 1997, only limited historical consclidated financial statements or other
information are available for the Bank as rearganized.

Comparative results following the recrganization of the businesses within the Credit Suisse
Group are more meaningful at the Credit Suisse Group level rather than in the individual legal
entities. The Credit Suisse Group Annuzl Report presents these results.

The Bank posted excellent results in 1997, Net operating income was up 24.3% to CHF
10,792 millfon compared to 1996 and up 52.9% compared to 1986 pro forma. Despite the
increase of operating expenses to CHF 7,121 million, gross operating profit climbed 5.6% tc CHF
3,671 million compared to 1596 and 46.1% compared to 1996 pro forma.

Depreciation and write-downs on non-current assets amounted to CHF 323 million, Valuation
adjustments, provisions and losses totalled CHF 610 million. This inciudes credit and country
provisions of CHF 356 million, including CHF 321 million, relating to Asia/Pacific exposures.

Pre tax operating profit increased by 54.7% to CHF 2,738 million compared o 1998 and
48.4% compared to 19986 pro forma.

Extraordinary expenses amounted to CHF 801 million. This includes restructuring costs within
Credit Suisse Group of CHF 79 million, CHF 332 million relating tc the acquisition of BZW'’s UK
and Continental European equities, equity capital markets, mergers and acquisitions and corporate
finance advisory businesses and a provision of CHF 220 million for IT expenditures; mainly
for anticipated costs for identifying, prioritising, modifying or replacing systems and testing new or
modified systems that may be affected by the Year 2000 or EMU events.

After taxes, this resulted in a net profit before minority interests of CHF 1,320 million, an
increase of 55.5% compared to 1996 pro forma.

The Bank's return on equity was 17.05% based on profit post ordinary taxes and pre extraor-
dinary items and 11.2% based on net profit after extraordinary items and mincrities.

Total assets increased by CHF 160 billion to CHF 453 billion compared to year-end 1996 and
CHF 41 billion compared to the opening balance sheet after reorganization. The shareholders’
equity increased from CHF 8,671 million in the opening balance sheet after reorganization to
CHF 11,287 millien. The risk-weighted capital ratio increased from 12.9% in the opening balance
sheet after reorganization to 14.9% and the core capital ratio (BIS tier 1) was 8.5%.

The Bank expects to continue to reap further benefits from the strategic refocusing. Profi-
tability at CSFB is increasingly achieved by using the business unit's global reach, country and
industry expertise and product and capita! resources to combine principal peosition taking, under-
writing and trading skills with client service. As such, emphasis on building higher margin activities
is consistent with both increased client and proprietary activities — each complementing the other.
At CSAM continued expansion, focusing on optimizing product, distribution and asset mix remains
the strategic priority.

While the favorable market environment is unlikely to continue indefinitely — as experienced
recently in some markets — the Bank hopes to continue achieving good results. In implementing

the new structure, cost centrol and risk management have been accorded a high priority.




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Change to the balance
Notes 31.12.97 31.12.96' 1,1.977  sheet after reorganization
ASSETS page CHF m CHEm CHF m CHF m U

T e b
DTS e s i 21760
ofunen secules encig A MRS IIINTE o S Tiogs eneon iasss -
DUIIM SIS i o S o G i
R T T

Securities and precious metals trading portfalio

Financial investments®
e rep,'ac:emenrva.'ueofdenvatlves54 s s e S
TOTAL ASSETS 48, 49, 50 452 §94 293 291 412 256 40 638 9.9
52 2 398 315 -5 - -*

olidated participations and qualified shareholders 693 378 s - -

Non~c,:onsclidated parti.éipations
Tangible fixed assets®

Accrued income and prepaid expens

Qther assets

Total subordinated clai

Change to the balance
Notes 31.12.97 31.12.96' 1,1.97%  sheet after reorganization
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY page CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m %

Liabilities in respect of money market paper 46,81 . 17 751 6 807 11169 & 582 589
e e 4651. 206600 s T or .
F wiieh sacuriies boowing and repurchase agreements gagss 3352 89637
Duet0customer5msavmgsand|nvestmentdepos|ts .................................................... e 2295 EVeT

of which securities borrowing and repurchase agreenents
Cash bonds

51 525

Total liabilities TadiBeT 981554 402585
Reserve against general banking risks 412 432 412

S 3149 2149 3149

Cap|taireserves ......................................................................................................................... e s
Retained earnings 1 030 5 637

Minority interests in shareholders’ equity*

Total shareholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 452 894 293 391 412 256 40 638 9.9
13 268 8 796 —% -5 —*

Total subordinated labilities

Total liabilities due to non-consolidated participations an;

! Refers 1o the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which 3 Repossessed real estate and other assets held for resale are now inciuded under
also includes Retail and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore tinancial investments rather than under tangible fixed assets. The prior year financial
fimited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group. statements have not been restated.
2 The balance sheet after reorganization has not been audited. Rather, it has been + CHF 792 million represents perpetual non-cumulative non voting preferred shares hela
reviewed by the independent auditors, See notes to consolidated financial statements by Credit Suisse Group as direct investments in subsidiaries of Credit Suisse First
for description of review. Boston.
* Not available.
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+ CONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE-SHEET BUSINESS

Notas 31.12.97 31.12.96' Change Change
CONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE-SHEET BUSINESS page CHF m CHF m

Contingent liabilities

Irrevocable commitments

Lizbiiities for calls on shares and other equity

replacement value
gross negative replacement value

1557538 ........... 505
-18 862 ~76.4

— contract volume

Fiduciary transactions

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which aliso includes
Retail and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is theretore limited due to the restructuring
implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.
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CONSGLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

income from interest business, Securities trading portfelio interest and dividends were also a component of
trading income, Commencing Januvary 1, 1997, securities trading portfolio interest and dividends are included in
income from interest business and funding costs for the securities trading porticlic were gliminated as a
component of trading income, The prior year financial statements have been restated.

2

INCOME AND EXPENSES Notes 1997 1996" Change Change
FROM ORDINARY BANKING BUSINESS page CHF m CHF m CHFE m %
Results from interest business
|nterestandd|5count|ncome55 13590 ......... Qgg
"""" 8465
........ 236
........ 1 127
....... _325
Results from commission and service fee activities
omfrcm!endmgactmhes55 .......... 253 .......... 307 ......... _54 ,,,,,,,, - ]76
n|esandmvestmenttransacmns55 ....... 3 729 ....... Q 792 .......... 937 ......... 336
rsemcesss ............ 44 .......... 320 —276 ...... —863
" 55 —‘268 ........ _273 ............... 5 —18
o comm|ss|onandserv|cefeemcome55 ....... 3 758 ....... 3 146 612 195
Net trading income? 55 4 791 2 157 2634 1221
Other ordinary income
incom e fro m thesale X fomanc,almvestments ................................................................................. 1 72 _] 52 ....... —884
.'l n comefromparhapahons ................................................................................................................. 59 ............... 3 ............ 5 8
of which from participations accounted for using the equily method Tar T e —24.4
of wh:chmcom efromothe rnon_conmhda ted pammpahons .................................................................... ” 13 ........ ”82
Realestatemcome .............................................................................................................................. 27 ............ 46 ........ 1 704
Sundryordmarymcome 169 .......... —48 ....... —284
Sundryordmaryexpenses" _73 ............... 2 _97
N et oth er ordmary | ncome ........................................................................................................... 347 ........ _1 49 -42 9
Net operating income 8 681 2111 24.2
Operating expenses
Personne]expenses56 —3562 _1 920 539
oiheroperatmgexpensesﬁs —1644 5 _03
Tota!operatmgexpenses _5206 ..... - 1915 ......... 368
Gross operating profit 3475 196 5.6
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT/LOSS
Gross operating profit 3 475 196 5.6
D ep remanon . an d : wnte-downs On . n On_c u r:ent ass e ts'" ........................................................ 3 8 . 5 6 —67 g 35 6 ....... _.524
Va|uat|onadJustmentslprowsxonsand|osses56 —1026 .......... 416 ....... _,405
Consolidated profit before extraordinary items and taxes 1770 968 54.7
Extraordinary income 57 T8 83 -5 -6.0
Ex{raordmaryexpenses ................................................................................................................... 5 7 —801 —2892 2091 ....... _723
Taxesonnetextraordmary.tems45 .......... 200 O QOO ............... -
Taxesonproﬁtbeforeextraord|nary|tem545 -—895 _405 _490 1210
Consolidated net profit/loss (before minority interests) -1 320 ~1 444 2 764 191.4
of which minority interests . 108 261 ~155 -50.4
Consolidated net profit/loss (after minority interests) 1214 -1 705 2 919 171.2
¥ Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which also includes Retail 2 As a result of the changes to the accounting principles, write-
and Private Banking. The cemparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented downs on repossessed rea! estate held for resale are now
within the Credit Suisse Group. included under sundry ordinary expenses. The prior year finan-
* During 1996, funding costs for the securities trading partfolio were a component of both trading income and cial statements have not been restated.




JCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operatlons
Consolldated net prof:t/loss B B
Valuatlons adjustments pro»usnons and losses
Depreuation and wnte-downs on non- current assets S
Extraordinary expenses -
Frovisions for s
Accrued Income and})t’epa:d expenses
Accrued expenses and deferred income R

Income from participations accounted for using the
eqmty method of consolldatlon

C

Dividend payments

ency. dxfference

Ca h flows from ital transacti

1997 1996'

Net Net
Source Use in/outflow Seurce Use infoutflow
CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m
3 661 2 985
....... 1320 1444
.......... 510 : 026
323 .................. 579 ................................
741 ................... 9520 .................................
.......... 780 471
1500 ............. 63 .................................
1507 ................................... 107 ..................................

31 74
25 ................................... 310 ..................................

............................ 114 773
311 2

Transfer of subsidiary to Credi
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Cash flow from fi

-424

"2
403 .......... 538
Other f|xed assets ................. 74 991 .................
Mortgages S Eeal estate 214 ................. 43 .................
Total cash flows from operations,
capital transactions and fixed assets 3 328 2 563
Interbank busmess -23 528 8 863
Due to banks e h ettt et en e et entn eteeereaeennen e 13240 ................. 1 1639 ..................................
Due from banks et e S an et h et s et e raes st nneeare ereeeeieeeisinas 15425 ................. 1175 ..................................
Money market clalms e ettt et ee e er e b s n it smeet e e ees rvasersesseanee 1445 ................. e 6 558 .................
L!abilitles - respect of money market paper 6582 .................. 260'.? ..................................
Customer busmess 27 537 1128
Due to customers sawﬁgs and mvestmem deposlts 75 .................. retene e 320? ...................................
Due to customers cther depesm 10150 .................. 22192 .................
Cash bonds e e 999 ....... Q 931
Mortgages 1523 1573 .................
Lo Customers 18834 ...................... 90766 .................
Capltal market busmess 16 290 1514
o bonds and mortgage bonds |ssued by the central v et e O PSSl
mortgage bond institutions and the central issuing offices 19 32¢ 3 039 2888 1374
Other balance sheet i -231 13 _:13“22«;

Secunhes and precnous metal tradlng pertfolio

Total cash flows from banking business

Liquidity

' Reters to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group)
which also includes Retall and Private Banking. The comparability of the
figures s therefore imited due to the restructuring implemented within the
Credit Suisse Group.




‘NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Risk management

1. GOAL AND DEFINITION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

The prependerance of market and credit risk exposures of Credit Suisse First Boston ('the Bank")
arises from activities of the Credit Suisse First Boston business unit (CSFB'). The other business
units forming part of the Bank do not have market and credit risk exposures material to the Bank
as a whole. Therefore, the following overview of risk management describes the procedures and
processes undertaken in CSFB.

CSFB perceives risk management as an ongoing process which starts with the definition of a
bank’s business objectives and strategies and proceeds with the identification, assessment, man-
agement and control of all risks associated with the Bank's activities and cioses the cycle with the
reaffirmation or validation of chjectives and strategies.

CSFB pursues a balanced risk management palicy framewaork with clear goals of capital optimi-
zation and preservation. The policy is aimed at meeting the challenges of a rapidly changing market
environment, while maximizing the Bank's potentiat via efficient management of economic capital.

All financial market activities generate various types of risks, primarily market risk and credit
risk, CSFB seeks to manage all risks on a prudent basis. Significant personnel and technological
resources are focused on ensuring that CSFB continues to develep its risk management capa-

bilities and thereby remains at the forefrent of the industry.

Key to successful risk management at CSFB has heen:

- the design of a clear complementary top-down, strategic and bottom-up, tactical risk manage-
ment approach with formal poiicies and procedures addressing all areas which cover significant
risk within the institution; the set up of an organizationai and operational structure robust and
flexible enough to cope with changes in the business environment and to allow for the global
integration of the various risks that can affect CSF8’s portfolio, such as market, liquidity, credit
and settlement, legal and operational risks.

- the development of an application technology target (an adaptable, extendible software infra-
structure with a centralized data base of sensitivities of all portfolios, aggregated at a cluster
fevel) to address the process of proactive market risk management and optimize the estimation

of strategic capital usage.

2. MARKET RISK

Market risk may be described as the potential change in the value of a partfolio of financial instru-
ments resuliing from the movement of market rates, prices and volatilities. A typical transaction or
position may be exposed to a number of different market risks.

CSFB devotes considerable resources to ensure that market risk is comprehensively captured
and understood, accurately modelled and effectively managed. The Market Risk Management
(MRM) department, being independent from Trading, consolidates exposures arising from all trad-
ing portiolio and gecgraphical centres, and calculates and reports CSFB's global aggregate Value

at Risk (VAR on a daily basis. In addition, MRM undertakes regular scenario analysis for all major

portfolios.




These measurement technigues can be summarized as follows:

— VAR is an estimate of the potential loss arising from & portfolio to a predetermined level of con-
fidence and holding period, using market movements determined from historical data.

— Scenario analysis estimates the potential loss from severe moves in market parameters. These

moves are modelled on past extreme events and hypothetical scenarios.

Value at Risk CSFB has used a VAR methodology to model market risk since 1995, The
methodology is subject to continuous review to ensure that it remains relevant to the business
being conducted, captures ali significant risks, is consistent across risk types, and meets or
exceeds regulatory and industry standards.

CSFB's positions are consolidated globally and the VAR is reported daily in the market risk
report.

Risk Methodology CSFB's VAR is defined as the 99th percentiie greatest loss that may be
expected on a portfolio over a 10-day holding period. Two years of underlying data are used to
derive the market movements used for this calculation. These movements are recaiculated on a
quarterly basis, and after periods of market turbulence. These parameters and procedures meet the
quantitative requirements laid down by the Basle Committee on Banking Supervision.

Positions are aggregated by type of risk rather than by preduct. For exampie interest rate risk
includes risk arising from money market and swap transactions, bonds, interest rate options, foreign
exchange, equity and commodity options.

During 1997 CSFB began migrating from a variance-covariance VAR methodology to a histori-
cal simulation approach for its derivatives trading subsidiary Credit Suisse Financial Products
{{CSFP. Under this methedology exposures are determined by taking current positions and calcu-
lating a series of 10-day profit and loss movements using two years of historical data. Risk is
calculated as the 99th percentile of observed losses over the pericd. By the year-end historical
simulation was used to calculate risk for foreign exchange delta, gamma, vega and interest rate
delta.

Where historical simulation is not used, the VAR is calculated by multiplying the risk sensitivity
by a market shock (‘extreme move’) based on the 99th percentile confidence interval over a
10~day period. It is planned to implement the historical simulation method across all divisions within

CSFB in due course.

Risk Offset In arriving at aggregate VAR it is necessary to allow offsets between different mar-
kets, currencies and risks to reflect the historical relationship between these markets and the
impact of diversification. Correlations are used in the variance-covariance method to offset risk.

In the historical simutation method the offset between different currencies or risk types can
be taken into account by summing the 10-day profits and losses for each of the underlyings and
calculating the 89th percentile worst case loss over the historical period. This is a mere robust
approach because offset benefits are based on actual relationships between underlyings rather

than on correlations which can be unstable.

1997 AVERAGE MARKET
RISKSY

1% 2%

18%

W Total Interest Rates

1. Total Foreign Exchange
W Total Equity

Total Commodities

B Total Cross Risk

Excluding correlation effects
between the risk factors.

Cross Risk

Cross risk affects covari-
ance preducts where

the pay out is dependent
uvpon two or more under-
lying market parameters
and the relationship bet-
ween them. It is the risk
that the marketis moving
simultaneously may have
a ditferent effect than
that predicted by the
independent moves of
each underlying,

Variance Covariance
versus Historical
Simulation
Variance-covariance me-
thods are based on cal-
culating volatilities of the
variables under consider-
ation (e.g. equity indices,
F/X rates), ang correla-
tion matrices for changes
in these variables, They
assume that the changes
in these variables are
normally or lognormally
distributed. Historical
simulation uses actual
historical changes in
these variables over the
observation pericd, and
s avoids these assump-
tions about their distribu-
tion. Historical simulation
implicilly allows for cor-
relaticns without the
calculation overhead or
assumptions involved

in using a correlation
matrix.
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Authorities and Market Risk Limits There are three main levels of risk management:

Board of Directors: Ultimately responsible for the determination of general risk policy and
risk management organization. The Board of Directors meets at least 5 times a year.
Chairman’s Committee (ChC} of the Board of Directors: Responsible for approving
the overall market risk ceiling, reviewing the Bank’s risk exposure on a quarterly basis and estab-
lishing a Capital Allocation and Risk Management Committee (CARMC?) for CSFB, including
at least five members of the Executive Board and Senior Management. The ChC meeis at least
5 times a year.

CARMC: The Board of Directors and ChC have delegated certain risk management and
control responsivilities to CARMC. CARMC is responsible for approving market risk manage-
ment policies and procedures (documented in the Market Risk Manual}, recommending overall
market risk limits and market risk limit changes (total risk limit) to the ChC for review and
approval, approving concentration limits (market value limits and sublimits, name and country
limits), approving excesses within its own authority, and approving stress test and scenario

analysis definitions. CARMC meets on a monthly basis.

Within CSFP the risk management committees are:

Board of Directors (CSFP): Responsible for setting the market risk limits, reviewing the
positions on a quarterly basis and approving excesses over the CEO's authority.

CARMC (CSFB): Responsible for approving CSFP's liquidity limits, reviewing risk utilisa-
tions, and approving new methodologies.

Risk Management Committee (CSFP): Comprises members of senior management from
Trading, Product Development, Financiai Control, and Risk Management and Quantitative
Anzlysis (RMQAY. Responsible for reviewing potential trades with new risk types and resolving

other technical risk matters.

Market risk limits are structured at three levels:

. an overall market risk VAR limit for CSFB as a whole,

market risk limits by divisions (e.g. Fixed Income Division, Equity Divisian, CSFP}; and
market risk limits by business cluster (e.g. Foreign Exchange).

In addition, there are asset class VAR limits which are used to control exposure within a particu-

lar risk class (e.g. interest rate risk, equity risk, F/X risk).

The three-level VAR limit structure described above represents CSFB's official limit frame-

wark. Limits at lower levels (e.g. limits by region, risk factor limits at the cluster level, trading desk,

trader, loss flags, greek limits, etc.) are imposed by trading management in consultation with Market

Risk Management. These limits are essentially internal risk flags which are used to assist trading

management io identify boten’tial risk concentrations and to allocate the cluster market risk limits to

individual regions and desks. Market Risk Management also provides assistance in monitoring com-

pliance at these levels, as required.

CSFB uses various other types of limits o highiight potential concentrations. These include,

among cothers:

country exposure limits;
issuer limits; and

market value limits.




Within CSFP a modified market risk limit structure is used. Market risk limits are struciured at
four tevels:

- total risk limit, which is an aggregate of all risk exposures,

- market risk limits, comprising five first order risks (outright interest rate, foreign exchange,
equity, commodity and credit spread) and seven second order risks (yield curve, swap spread,
non-LIBOR and cross-currency basis risks, option gamma, cption volatility and cross market
risk),

- liquidity limits, within each of the above categories by currency and market, and

- loss and risk flags, determined for each trader.

Market Risk Capital Based on VAR The Basie Committee on Banking Supervision published
its '"Amendment to the Capital Accord to Incorporate Market Risks’ in January 1996, These recom-
mendations allow banks to calculate regulatory capital required to support market risk based on
the results of their internal VAR models scaled up by a multiplication factor of three or more. The
capital cushion created by this multiplication factor is intended to compensate for the regulators’
concerns about any uncertainties or weaknesses in a bank's risk model.

Following a review and confirmation of compliance with the Swiss equivalent of the BIS guideli-
nes by CSFB's Banking Law Auditors, the Federal Banking Commission has ailowed CSFB to cam-
mence using its internal VAR models to calcutate market risk capital with effect from January 1,
1998.

Relationship between Daily Revenue and VAR Estimate The chart below illustrates the
relationship between daily trading profit and loss and daily VAR over the course of 1987 The aver-
age daily trading revenue was CHF +25.1 million and the minimum and maximum levels were CHF
—102.6 million and CHF +120.0 million, respectively.

The average daily VAR estima-
te was CHF 201.9 million, the iy

- . 300
minimum and maximum levels RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DAILY REVENUE AND VAR ESTIMATE

were CHF 139.2 million and CHF 280 ferrrr s
2577 million respectively. The

One Day VAR
b T T & T o O TE -han\ LT

frequency distribution of daily
trading revenue for 1997 is illus-

This type of comparison bet- 50h DallyP&L
ween daily trading profit and loss
and the daily VAR is known as
backtesting and is the method pro- PP ORRSPP ORIV UPSTORINIOIY SN | SIS TR
posed by the Basle COMMILIEE OGN <100 [t e et e e bt as e e b
Banking Supervision for measuring P
the accuracy of the VAR model.

L. 2707 ) CRTCTUTICOTIROUTOn. IR, +. sk SNNURIRES | PUR
The VAR measure is intended to
One Day VAR
be larger than all but a small frac- =260 -eereeerseneeen
tion of trading outcomes, and is 300
) . Pencd
determined by the confidence 1st & 2nd O 3re 4th © 5o

level.
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Risk management

Frequency

O OISTRIBUTION OF DAILY TRADING REVENUE Backtesting is performed at two

45 |oereverereeeesm s ee s e s e et s b : levels: the overall bank level and the

trading book level. Results of the pro-

O cess at the aggregate level (see

55 | emersremseeeesene e e ns e s rnrec st bt e seare et above) demonstrate no exceptions and
B therefore confirm that the Bank’s VAR

Borr e model is sound and meets regulatory

95 [rreraereent st e s e e - - . B standards.

d § ; Comparison at an individual book
oy level permits the review of riskmodei-
= S ling techniques at the level of a spe-
I _ ) cific trading unit or risk model and

enables any problems that surface at

§ ersst st e e b ¥ the aggregate levet to be traced back

o - ggg gg—gg = RNy R tot}Telrsource*..Result-sforthem-ajor
RSN A R T A R === 3 trading portiolios provide useful in-

Trading revenues in millions CHF
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sights into the profit and loss and VAR

reporting process.

Scenario Analysis  Scenario analysis is an essential component of CSFB's market risk measure-
ment framework. UUsing this technique, market risk is measured by dynamically revaluing each port-
folio after moving the market data parameters. Market data parameters are changed according to a
predefined set of scenarios.

Scenario analysis supplements the VAR approach, in that it can be used to view risk in cases
where market conditions are disrupted.

Reports are produced for senicr management and traders for a range of scenarios ¢n a monthly
basis, Market data scenarios include yield curve and credit spread movements, changes in recovery
rates on emerging market bonds, exchange rate movements, equity index and stock price move-
ments, gold and oil price movements and changes in volatilities and correlations.

Many of the scenarios are based on extreme macroeconomic events from the past — for exam-
ple, the 1987 stock market crash and the Gulf War. There are also some scenarios that assess the
impact of the events that could occur in the future — for example, postponement of European
Monetary Union.

In the disrupted market conditions that occurred in the last quarter of 1897, scenario results
for emerging market difficulties were particularly useful. In fact, CSFB's actual results outperformed
the scenario analysis. In addition, a scenario which quantifies the impact on projected losses of
being able to parially re-hedge perticlios as markets fell and a scenario that measured the impact
of a stock market bounce back also provided management with useful information for managing

the business at that time.




3. CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

COUNTERPARTY RISK

Definition The counterparty risk portion of credit risk is determined by the likelihcod of such a
counterparty not fulfilling its contractual obligations with regard to interest and capital and thus
creating a partial or iotal loss for the bank. Counterparties are rated in accordance with a specific

rating system, whereby class R1 rated counterparties are the lowest and R8 are the highest risk.

Credit Authority Credit authorily is delegated by the Chief Credit Officer to specific individuals,
depending on knowledge, experience and capability, and is reviewed periodically. Those approving
transactions remain responsible for the risk during the life of the transaction. Credit authorizations

are separated from line functions.

Credit Analysis Methodology All counterparties are assigned a risk rating as noted above.
Credit analysis is risk/reward oriented, i.e. the intensity and depth of analysis is related to the
amount, duration and level of risk being entered into. Where they can be justified, independent ex-
ternal ratings are used. Analysis consists of a quantitative and gualitative porticn and strives to be
torward looking, concentrating on economic trends and cash flow generating capacity. In addition,
analysts make use of peer analysis, industry comparisons and other quantitative tools. Any finai
rating requires the consideration of qualitative factors relating to the company, its industry and
management. The global introduction of a more quantitative modet called CRS {Credit Rating
System), which was developed by CSFP, made strong headway in 1997 and is planned to be com-
pleted in 1998.

Credit Portfolio Management The aim of credit portfolio management is o support the opti-
mization of the risk/return relationship through diversification, limitation and active steering of
credit risks. Tools used include setting of ceilings for particular business risks, setting of monitoring
and approval procedures and incorporation of credit risk aspects in product policies.

CSFB's traditional limit system, which divided credit types into categories such as lending, for-
ward transactions, etc. with like risks assigned similar weightings, is being further refined 1o allow

for new products as introduced and fer efficient allocation of credit limits.

Credit Exposure Management Credit monitoring takes place on two different levels: that of
the exposure related to individual limits and clients, as well as that of the entire or specified por-
tions of CSFB's portfolic. Credits are monitored on an on-going basis, with frequency varying
according to the level of risk i.e. the credit risk class determines the intensity and frequency of the
monitoring process. Monitoring serves the purpose of early recognition of risks and development

of measures to cope therewith.

Credit Provisions (CSFB has established a new methodology for determining expected credit loss
provisioning. All counterparties are rated according to their quality and given a risk classification

of R1 through R8. Multi-year default statistics established by renowned credit rating agencies are
used to calculate expected losses. Such default rates are multiplied with the respective counter-
party’s net exposure generating credit loss provisions. In these calculations conservative average

recovery rates based on published studies of bank loan recoveries are integrated as a loss offset.
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For financial reporting purposes specific credit loss provisions are established on a case-by-

case basis taking into account the respective counterparty and/cr transaction risk,

CREDIT RISK ARISING FROM TRADING POSITIONS AND DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS
Business in trading and derivatives in markets without margin calls (especially in the OTC area) is
measured and monitored against counterparty limits on at least a daily basis. Credit risk is defined
by contract as the sum of the positive replacement value and further potential exposure (safety

add-on), which is based on the price volatility of the underlying market factors.

COUNTRY RISK

Country risk is defined as the risk associated with the repatriation of foreign currency exposures

through restrictien on monetary and capital transactions as a result of economic or political factors.

The Board of Directors and the Chairman's Committee have consciously decided to address country

risks, the former by approving CSFB’s medium term strategy, the latter by approving selected high

level limits to manage the Bank’s risk portfolio. All five Business Divisions, Corporate and Invest-
ment Banking ('C1B0DY), Fixed Income, Equities, CSFP and Private Equity, take on country exposure
in a variety of ways. The measurement of and limits on this risk, as for other risks, are defined by
senior management. The day-to-day management of country exposure is assigned to each Division
in accordance with its business authorizations and limit allocations. Market Risk Management and

Credit Risk Management provide independent oversight to ensure that the Divisions cperate within

their limits.

In addition to setting country exposure limits by Division, limits are also set for each product
generating a country exposure for each Division. The range of products includes: loans and related
facilities, trading with counterparties, trading (inventory) positions, and security financing trades.
These risks are monitored daily to monthly depending on the product for countries defined as pre-
industrialized and emerging market countries, and semi-annuaily for G10 and other industrialized
countries.

The designation of countries as G10 and other industrialized couniries or pre-industrialized
and emerging market countries is reviewed on a reguiar basis by CARMC and is submitied to the
Chairman's Committee for approval.

Country risk is reflected in the financial records of the Bank in the {ollowing ways:

1. All trading positions are marked to market {(MtM). It is CSFB's policy that all positions included
in the trading book are revalued, at indicative market prices, on a daily basis. All positions are
marked to market at the appropriate end of the bid-offer spread.

2, toan and related facilities, exposures (mark-to-market receivables) to trading counterparties,
and exposures associated with financing trades are provisioned on a case-by-case basis. A
provision is made as soon as serious doubis arise as to the collectability of the asset. The
necessary provisions against the asset's capital value and the interest on the asset are made
according to the principle of prudent accounting, the level of security provided, and the general

economic climate. Provisions are made for higher risk scenarios where default is expected.




Listed below are year-end loans and related exposures {letters of credit, guarantees, unfunded
commitments and similar instruments) and exposures {mark-to-market receivables) to trading coun-
terparties, aggregated by rating of country of risk (country of risk is the domicile of the obligor).
Trading positions and reverse repurchase agreements are not included as they are marked to mar-

ket on a daily basis and the relatied risks are managed by Market Risk Management.

As of December 31, 1997
COUNTRY EXPOSURE BY RATING

Country Rating Class Total Exposure

CHF m %
N1 143 634.5 76.1
NQ ........ S i
N3 ......... S S
N4 ......... sonis e
N5 ......... Comae Ty
NG .......... e T
N7 ............. e TG
Total 188 §22.5 100.0

COUNTRY RATING CLASS DESCRIPTION
CSFB Rating  Definition Description S&FP/Moody's
hese coun ries offer exceptionat financial security AAA/Aaz

N1 Substantlal!y Rlsk Free smallest degree of ri

N2 imal Risk AA/Aa
N3 Modest Risk good financial secuniy, more susceptlle to the adverse effects of changes in

mrcumstances and economic condxtlons AFA
N4 Average R:sk adequate fmanaal secunty. certam protectwe elements are !ackmg BBB/Baa
N5 Accepiable Rlsk questlonable fmancual secunty, major uncertatntles and ongoing exposure

o adverse political or economic cenditions leading to inadequate capacity to

na mal commnments BB/Ba

NG Weak Risk poor flnanc:zal securl’cy curreniy has capaaty to meet fmam:lal commltments
but any adverse political or economic development will likely impair capacity or
willingness to meet commltments Bto CCC/Bto C

N’? . F’oor h very poor f|nan<:|aI securlty, often in default or on the verge of default CC to D/Caa to C

4. SETTLEMENT RISK

Settiement risk is the risk which is inherent in ‘exchange-for-value' transactions where instructions
to release or deliver funds, precious metals or commodities are sent to the delivery agent and are
no ionger revocable with 100% certainty, while simultanecusly the countervalue receipt is not defi-
nitely in hand. Settlement risk will persist until such time that the receipt has been reconciled and
finality has occurred.

The Bank seeks to manage settlement risk through its participation in regulated clearing and
depository crganizations, which offer DVP (delivery versus payment) services. The Bank is also
actively participating in the creation of new clearing systems, e.g. in the development of 'Continuous
Linked Settlement CLS' 1o eliminate settiement risk in the field of foreign exchange trading. In
those markets where these services do not exist, the Bank utilizes agent banks that are instrucied

to exchange value for value.
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In those instances where market convention and/or products preclude a vaiue for value ex-
change, the Bank manages its risk through robust confirmation and affirmation of transacticn
details with counterparties. The Credit Department considers these factors in deciding counterparty

risk limits.

5. LEGAL RISK

As discussed above, credit risk is the risk that a borrower or counterparty will nat be able to pay its
debis or perform its obligations under a contract (e.g. because it is insolvent). Legal risk, by con-
trast, is the risk that a borrower or counterparty may not have to pay its debts or perform its obliga-
tions under a contract {e.g, because the contract is unenforceable). Among other things, legal

risk embraces lack of power or authority to enter into a contract or insufficient or inappropriate
documentation.

The Bank seeks to minimize legal risk by using appropriate documentation, including standard
master agreements and individual trade confirmations, and by following procedures to verify that
documents have been correctly signed. Where it is deemed appropriate, external counsel will be
consulted about the power and authority of the borrowers and counterparties with which it deals. In
a more general sense, legal risk is also addressed in many other ways through refining controls

over business practices and behaviour and proactive use of the Bank’s compliance function,

6. OPERATIONAL RISK

In treasury and securities trading, the Bank’s trading units are kept strictly separate from back-
office operations for the producis in question, with each area reporting to a different line of man-
agement. Technical and organizational control mechanisms seek to ensure that transactions
carried out by the trading uniis are processed promptly, correctly and without omission.

Systems appiications are routinely upgraded with a view to attaining full automation of the pro-
cess from the receipt of data right through to any payments that need to be made and in order to
ensure that all execution pracedures comply with the relevant regulations and internal devices.
Should technical problems arise, fall-back procedures switch in to erable operations to continue in
an orderly manner.

Each individual processing procedure is regularly assessed for any risk and global crisis event
procedures have been established and documented. Organizational and technical adjusiments are
made on an ongoing basis with due consideration given to costs and operational benefits. Changes
in aperating environment and market developments are analyzed and continually factored into the

Bank's processing procedures.




7. ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

The Corporate Treasury Department at CSFB oversees corporate policy in regard to inferest rate
and foreign exchange exposure as well as a range of other important policy areas including matu-
rity profile, internal and external capitalization, intercompany funding and liquidity policy. It is cur-
rently the Bank's policy to take a neutral position or interest and F/X exposures from a corporate
perspective. Trading divisions are authorized to take such risks as part of their business strategies,
within limitations set by the Capital Allocaticn and Risk Management Committee, and subject to

the MtM disclosures in trading book resulis,

8. NOTES ON BUSINESS POLICY WITH REGARD TO THE USE OF DERIVATIVES
The trading and use of derivative products generate various types of risk, notably market and credit
risk, but also operational and legal risk.

For details of CSF8's business policy with regard to the recording, management and limitation
of these risks and the manner in which this policy is implemented see the notes in the respective
sections. The precedures employed by the specialist derivatives subsidiary CSFP to measure,
manage and moniter market and credit risk are in line with CSFB's procedures described herein,

The higher standards of disclosure concerning risk management to which this Annual Report
conforms are in line with the joint recommendations issued by 10SCO and the Basle Committee on
Barking Supervision in November 1885, They likewise comply with the Swiss Bankers Association
Risk Management Guidelines for Trading and for the Use of Derivatives, which entered into force
on July 1, 1996.

As in the 1996 financial statements, detailed financial information is given for all open deriva-
tives positions heid by the Bank as of December 31, 1997, together with information concerning
credit risk. These figures, which can be found in the additional information on consolidated off-
balance-sheet business, once again follow the classification criteria stipulated by the Institute of
International Finance and by Switzerland’s accounting rules for financial institutions. The Annual
Report shows the positive replacement values, contract values and credit equivalents broken down
by counterparty credii quatity, together with the positive replacement values and credit equivalents

classified according to the maturity of the relevant product (see page 53).
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(a) Basis of accounting and consolidation Credit Suisse First Boston's (the Bank's?)
financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Swiss Federal Law on Banks and Saving
Banks of 1934 as amended, the Implementing Grdinance on Banks and Saving Banks and the
Guidelines of the Federal Banking Commission Concerning the Preparation of Financial State-
ments as amended through October 22, 1997 (‘Swiss GAAP for banks’) as well as the 4th and
7th EU Directives and the EU Guidelines on the preparation of accounts for banks.

These financial statements, which are based on the significant accounting policies outlined
below, give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and the resuits of its opera-
tions and its cash flows.

Swiss GAAP for banks conforms in all material aspects to the 4th and 7th EU Directives
and to the EU Guidelines on the preparation of accounts for banks. However, Swiss GAAP for
banks contains no provision equivalent to Article 37 of the EU Guideiines on the preparation
of accounts for banks concerning undervaluation of certain types of assets. There are also minor
differences which are described in (¢} below.

The consclidated financial statements are comprised of the financial statements of the Bank
and its subsidiaries in which the Bank controls either directly or indirectly more than 50% of
voting rights or through other means. The net assets of subsidiaries have been consolidated using
the purchase method of acceunting.

Minority interests held by third parties (including interests held by Credit Suisse Group, the
parent company of the Bank) in the equity and in the annual profit of companies controlled by the
Bank are shown as separate items. Intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated on
conselidation.

The equity method of accounting is used in determining income and carrying values of
companies in which the Bank has a 20% or more, but not mere than 50% investment in voting
stock. These investments are included in 'non-consclidated participations' and the Bank's percen-
tage interest in their profits is included in ‘income from participations’ in the consolidated income
statement. Investments in companies which are held for resale are accounted for at cost less pro-
visions for permanent impairment in value.

A listing of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries, equity investments and non-consolidated partici-

pations is provided in the Notes to consolidated financial statements.




(b) Foreign currency transiation in the financial statements of individual companies, assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into the companies’ reporting currency at the
rate of exchange existing at the balance sheet date. Resulting exchange differences are included
in the income statement. )

For the purpose of consolidating individual financial statements, assets and liabilities and off-
balance sheet items in foreign currencies are translated into Swiss Francs using rates of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated into Swiss
Francs at average rates of exchange prevailing throughout the year,

Transiation differences arising on consolidation of subsidiaries and branches reporting in
currencies other than Swiss Francs together with gains and losses arising on related hedges are

taken to sharehclders' equity.

(¢) Deviations from EU Guidelines The areas in which the accounting policies deviate from

EU Guidelines on the Preparation of Accounts for Banks are as follows:

— The classification criteria used in the consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated income
statement differ from the classification criteria proposed by the EU Guidelines; however, all
significant information is provided.

— The difference between the purchase price of securities and precious metal trading positions
and their market value used in preparing the consoclidated financial statements is not disclosed
in the notes to consolidated financiat statements.

— The proportion of overall income and expenditure accounted for by operations outside Switzer-
land is not broken down by geographical location but is provided as one amount,

— No specific information is provided concerning emoluments paid to Members of the Board of

Directors and tc Members of the Executive Board.

(d) Recording of business All completed business is recorded in the consolidated financial
statements as follows: Foreign exchange, money market and precious metal transactions are
recorded on value (settlement) date. Prior to the value date, foreign exchange and precious metal
transactions are recorded as off-balance-sheet business. Securities transactions are recorded

on a trade date basis.

(e} Reporting of repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements Repurchase and reverse
repurchase transactions are shown in the balance sheet as advances secured by securities or as
deposits against which the Bank’s securities are pledged. Depending on the type of counterparty,
they are shown as claims on ('due from") or liabilities to (due t0) banks or customers. They are car-
ried in the balance sheet at the amounts at which the securities were initially acquired or scld as

specified by the respective agreements, plus interest accrued to the balance sheet date.

(f) Securities lending and borrowing Assets and liabilities arising from securities lending
and borrowing operations are recorded at market value and depending on the type of counter-
party, shown as claims on {(due from') or liabilities to (‘due t0") banks or custemers. Securities posi-
tions arising as a result of securities borrowing which are not used to cover short trading or secu-

rities iending positions are included as part of the securities and precious metal trading pertfolios.
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(g) Cash and other liquid assets, money market papers, funds due from and to banks
and customers including mortgages, financial leases and liabilities Receivables and
liabilities are generally accounted for at nominal value, Unearned discounts from money market
papers are accrued over the term of the ciaim. A provision is made as scon as serious doubts
arise as to the collectability of an asset. The necessary provision against the asset's principal and
related accrued interest is made in accordance with the principle of prudent accounting, the level
of security provided and the general economic climate. If the receivable shown in the accounts
cannot be coilected, a provision will be made which is set off against the corresponding assets,
Interest and commissicn income due from banks and customers overdue more than 20 days

is not credited to income from interest business but accounted for as a provision and credited to
the income statement after its collection.

In the case of claims subject to country risk, provisions are made as soon as serious doubts
arise as to the collectability of an asset. The necessary provisions against the asset's capital value
and accrued interest are made in accordance with the principle of prudent accounting, the level
of security provided, and the general economic climate. If the receivable shown in the accounts
cannot be collected, it is written off against the provision made against it. See alse changes

to accounting principles below, for changes in the accounting for country risk in 1997,

(h) Securities and precious metals trading portfolio  Upon purchase, securities and
precious metals are classified as either part of the trading portfolic or as financial investments.

The trading portiolio consists of precious metals and tradeable securities which are readily  *
realizable and securities acquired as a result of underwriting operations. Traded and OTC options
are included under ‘other assets’

The trading portfolic is valued at the market value as of the balance sheet date. Securities that
are not traded on a recognized stock exchange or on a representative market are carried at the
lower of cost or market value.

Unrealized as well as realized gains and losses arising from the valuation of the trading port-
folic are shown under ‘net trading income' in the income statement. Interest and dividend income
on the trading portfolio is included in ‘interest and dividend income from trading portfolio” in the

income statement.

(i) Financial investments Where management has the positive intent and ability to hold a
debt security to maturity, securities are designated as held-to-maturity. Held-to-maturity debt
securities are reported at amortized cost less provisions necessary when management has serious

doubts about the future repayment of the principal and future interest receivable.




Interest income including amortization of premium and discount is inciuded in the income state-
ment under ‘interest and dividend income from financial investments'. Profits arising from sales
on debt securities designated as held-to-maturity, are deferred and amortized over the original life~
time of the security.

Financial investments not classified as held-to-maturity are classified as available for sale
and accounted for at the iower of cost or market value. Interest and dividend income are included
in the income statement under 'interest and dividend income from financial investments Profits
arising from sales of available for sale securities (not classified as held-to-maturity) are included in

income from the sale of financial investments,

(i} Tangible fixed assets Real estate is valued at acquisition cost less accumulated depre-

ciation. New buildings and refurbishments are depreciated over 67 years. No depreciation

is recorded on land, however, provision is recorded for permanent impairment in market vatue.
Other fixed assets such as fixtures and fittings installed in rented properties, computers,

furnishings and vehicles are depreciaied over the estimated useful lives of the related assets

which range between three and five years.

(k) Goodwill Goodwill, the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired, is amor-
tized over its estimated useful life on a straight line basis. The amortization term may not be loenger
than five years unless a longer period, which may not exceed twenty years starting from the time
of the acquisition, is justified.

Prior to 1897, goodwill was charged against shareholders’ equity upon acquisition. The theoreti-
cal effect on the consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated income statement of amortizing
this goodwill over its estimated useful life is disclosed in the Notes to the consolidated financial

statements.

() Reserve against general banking risks The reserve against general banking risks repre-
sents reserves as at the balance sheet date against future banking risks, The reserve is included

as tier 1 capital with related movements included in earnings.

(m) Derivative financial instruments Forward rate agreements, futures, swaps, optiens, for-
ward contracts and other over-the-counter off-balance sheet instruments held for trading pur-
poses are marked to market and the resulting profits and losses are inciuded in ‘trading income’
in the income statement. The resulting replacement values are included in ‘other assets' or ‘other
liabilities' as appropriate and are presented net by counterparty for transactions in those products
where CSFB has a legal right of set off; otherwise the replacement vaiues are presented gross by
contract,

Where derivative financial instruments are used for hedging purposes, positive and negative
replacement value is calculated with the difference in value to the accrued amount included in
a compensation account ‘other assets’ or ‘other liabilities'. Replacement values when the Bank is
an agent for exchange traded contracts, are not disclosed, except in the exceptional cases where
the accrued daily loss is not fully covered through margin payments. Replacement values where
the Bank is an agent for over-the-counter contracts, are calculated even when they are covered

through margin payments.
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Gains and losses on derivative financial instruments used to hedge items reported at cost or
lower of cost or market are deferred and recognized in income when costs relating to the hedged
item are recognized in income. In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the derivative financial
instrument must meet the following conditicns: the item to be hedged must expose the Bank to
price or interest rate risk; it must be probable that the results of the hedge will substantially offset
the price or interest change in the hedged item; and the derivative financial instrument must be
designated as a hedge to the item.

Business policy wiih regard to the use of derivatives and risk management are commented in

the notes to the Bank’s operations.

(n} Pension plan accounting The Bank operates a number of pension fund schemes. Where
pension funds are defined contribution funds, costs are recorded on an accrual accounting basis.
Where pension funds are defined benefit schemes, annual contributions and related expense are

based on actuarial advice.

(0) Income and capital taxes Taxes are charged on the current year's profit. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are established for the expected future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities. In establishing
the deferred tax rate used to caiculate deferred tax assets, consideration is taken of the uitimate
deferred tax which will be of benefit; for deferred tax liabilities, the enacted tax rate is used.

Deferred tax assets are not established for tax loss carry forwards.

{p) Changes to accounting principles Guidelines of the Federal Banking Commission
concerning the preparation of financial statements of banks were revised on November 14, 1996

and October 22, 1997 The revised guidelines have resulied in the following accounting changes:

- Financial investments held-to-maturity debt securities Debt securities identified as
held-to-maturity are recorded at amortized cost. Debt securities that are not identified as
held-to-maturity are now valued at the lower of cost or market vaiue. Pricr year financial state-
ments have not been restated as the impact of the change is not material.

Starting in 1997, gains and losses on the sale of debt securities identified as held-to-maturity

are deferred and amoriized over the initial life of the security.

- Repossessed real estate and other assets held for resale Repossessed real estate
and other assets are now inciuded under financial investments rather than under tangible fixed

assets. The prior year financial statements have not been restated.

- Goodwill Goodwill is no longer charged against shareholders’ equity but capitalized and
included under ‘intangible fixed assets’ The prior year financial statements have not been
restated. The theoretical effect on the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated income
statement of capitalizing the goodwill purchased prior to 1997 and amortized over its esti-

mated useful life is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.




- Securities and precious metal trading portfolic At December 31, 19986, precious
metals were valued at the average December price or the price as of the balance sheet date,
whichever was lower. In 1897, precious metals are valued at the market value as of the bal-
ance sheet date. The prior year financial statements have not been restated as the impact of

the change is not material.

- Interest and dividend income from trading portfolio Starting in 1997, interest and
dividend income from securities held for trading purposes are included in income from interest
business rather than trading income. The funding cest of the trading portfolio is no longer
calculated and included in income from interest business and charged to trading income. The

prior year financial statements have been restated te refiect these changes.

- Country risk provisioning Prior to January 1, 1997, country risk provisioning was based
on prescribed rates by country as well as types of exposures provided by the Swiss Federal
Banking Commission. Country risk provisioning is now established based on the Bank's inter-
nal methodology. The prior year financial statements have been restated to reflect these

changes.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AFTER RESTRUCTURING

The unaudited consolidated financial information after restructuring of the Bank is based primarily
on the consolidated financial information of the former Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group)
and of the former CS First Boston Inc., in each case as of and for the year ended December 31,
1996. Such financial information has been adjusted te give effect to the reorganization and assu-
mes () in the case of the unaudited pro forma consolidated income statement, that the reorga-
nization had occurred on January 1, 1996 and (ii) in the case of the unaudited pro forma consoli-
dated balance sheet, that the reorganization had occurred on January 1, 1997 The pro forma
balance sheet has been prepared for illustrative purposes and has not been audited but reviewed

by the independent auditors. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and

analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit.
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EVENTS SINCE THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On November 12, 1997, the Bank entered into an agreement to purchase the UK and Continental
European equities, equity capital markets, mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance advisory
businesses of BZW, the investment banking division of Barclays Bank PLC for GBP 100 million.
These businesses employed approximately 1,000 people (exciuding temporary staff) as at Decem-
ber 31, 1997

The Bank completed the acquisition of the UK and continenta! European mergers and acquisi-
tions, corporate finance advisory and equity capita: markets businesses on December 31, 1997 In
addition, the Bank assumed management of the UK and Continental European equity sales, tra-
ding and research business under 2 management services agreement with Barclays. This arrange-
ment will operate until formal completion of the sales of those businesses to the Bank, which is
scheduled to occur during the first four months of 1998. This formal completion is contingent
upon the fulfiliment of certain conditions within these four months.

As a result, the bulk of the acquisition was not completed in 1997 and therefore has not been
consalidated in these financial statements as of December 31, 1997. However as management
fully expects that the remaining businesses will formally complete in 1998, a restruciuring provi-
sion has been recorded in the financial statements.

Mast of the acquisiticn is being effected by means of asset purchases, although entities are
being purchased in Holland, Spain and the UK.

In addition, the Bank has signed an agreement with Barclays to acquire certain of BZW's equi-
ty and investment barking businesses in Asia. Under the terms of the transaction, the Bank
will acquire investment banking, equity capital markets and equity personnel in Hong Kong;
BZW's 7T0% interest in an equity joint venture in Singapore; BZW's equity business in Taiwan;
stock exchange seats in Singapore, Hong Kong and Shanghai; and additional personnel in India,
Mataysia and Indonesia.

This acquisition is conditional upon the Bank obtaining all requisite regulatory consents and

approvals.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RATES

P H : . Fe : . Year end Yearly
applied to the consolidation of individual companies ates for belance sheet and average tates
off-balance-sheet positions for income statement
31.i2.97 31.12.96 1997 1996
MAIN CURRENCIES CHF CHF CHF CHF
1 US dollar 1.44 : 1.44 1.22
1 pound sterling

le

1 C

1 Australian dollar '

1 S d.;,.“ar

o Voo do"ar

10C deutschmarks

100 Luxembourgfrancs . TR U RSE

100FrenChfrancs

100 lire

100 yen

100 pesetas
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Subsidiaries and associated companies

Share capital
Company name Domcile Currency in 1000 Shareholding

CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Primarily engaged in investment and commercial banking
Credit Suisse First Beston, Inc. ) ) New York, UsSAa usb 2183 100. OO %!

Credit Suisse First Boston Custody (Moscow) Ltd. A______‘________“___m_______Moscow Russia _usb 500 100.00%
Cred|t Su;sse (Luxembourg) SA. o M_ﬂ_mmwwu“Luxemboufg. Luxembourg ) Lok 624 000 100.00 %

Credlt SUL

Credit Suisse First Boston (Ukraine) 15 000 100.00 %

Flnanz AG Zurlch 100.00%

Credit Suisse First Boston Finanziaia SpA.  Mianftay L 1 000 00G 100.00 %

Primarily engaged in derivative business
Credit Suisse Financial Products London, United Kingdom usD 482 325 80.00%

Finance and financiai holding companies

Credit Suisse First Boston International (Guernsey) Lid. ) St. Peter Port, Guernsey

© St Peter Port, Guernsey

CSFB (Latln Amenca) Holdings LLC Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands UsoD 7 84 550 100.00 %

Crodit Suisse First Boston Austratia (Franes) g Vialbgurne, Austiaia AUD 10066 o0.00%
DR ”w”m”:__London Umted ngdom

Hong Kong, China

Fund management companies
Credit Suisse Asset Management International Fund Holding Zurich, Switzerland CHF 20 000 100.00%

Primarily engaged in Asset Management
Credit Suisse Trust & Banking Co. Lid.

' 49% voling stock held by Credit Susse Group.
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Subsidiaries and associated companies

Share capital
Company name Bomicile Currency n 1000 Shareholding

Real estate companies

Sl Corne-a-Vin ) N Geneva, Swﬁzerland 7 ) CHF 80 000 100 OO %

Schwalbe AG ' 50 100,00 %
GTN Global F’ropertmes Holdmg g L:massol Cyprus uso 2 100.00 %

NON-CONSOLIDATED PARTICIPATIONS

Associated compaties (accounted for by the equity method)

Valcambi SA Balerna, Swntzerlaﬁd CHF 12 000 100.00 %
Grand Cayman Cayman Islands T 36 299......‘.... 3857%

e e e

Reinsurance Finance Consultants AG " Jurieh, Switeeriang T GHE T 0 gg a5,

Participations

Maln compames
Banco General de N.egocms Buenos A|res Argentma ARGOO . .66.5.;’1.3
Exterlor Sulza SA Geneva watzerland CHF1150001000%
Montevndeo, ‘Uruguay

) Zurlch SW|tzerIand
.“Zurlch SW|tzer|and

-””'Oiten Switzerland
""Zur:ch watzerland X

m“mZur;ch SW|tzerIand CHFSOOOGOO%
“”London Umted ngdom

NCO Desie: Soc Fm L|ssabon Portugal

San Luis Financial and Investment Co, Ltd.'"fﬁffﬁfﬁfﬁffﬁfﬁfﬁffﬁ.'_'f"ffffﬁfﬁfﬁfﬁfF’anama City Panama " PAN 480 iR

Cedei o Luxembourg, Luxembourg
Lmk Telecom Ltd o St Peter Port, Guernsey
SWIFT , La Hulpe, Belgium BEF 439900  ....180%

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Mam compames .

|mmob|||are Mmodo SA Bellmzona Swntzerland CHFQOO
COrpORaton i Fonama Gity Panama T UsD G 6000 5

|SmecaHO|deSA ; }_a Chaux_de_Fonds Swltzedand .
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Changes to the scope of consolidation

CHANGES TO THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION DUE TO TRANSFER OF OPERATIONS AND HOLDINGS AS OF JANUARY 1, 1897,
AS PART OF RESTRUCTURING WITHIN CREDIT SUISSE GROUP

Company name Comicile Shareholding
Additions )

Credit Suisse First Boston: (Internationa) AG Zug, Switzerland 100.00%
Credit Suisse First Boston. Inc. New York, USA 100.00 %
Disposals

City Bank

10 oo 00%
100:00%
100.00%

10000%
~100.60%
. Vaduz Llechtenstem

] Avenue de Rumme 37 SA. Lausanne Swﬂzerland
g Pamch SA

Verhka T
Credlt Smsse (Guernsey) Ltd

. Geneva Swtzeriand

100.00%
100.00%

Swiss American Corporation T New York, USA N 100 00%
Swvss Amer;can Secuntles Ine. New York USA '92.500%

Immob:llengesellschafi Glarus AG
Centre-Ville S.A.

Société Fonciére du Grand-Pont S.A. Lausanne, Switzerland 100.00 %

CHANGES TO THE SCOPE OF CONSCOLIDATION DURING BUSINESS YEAR 1997

Purchases

Newly established
Credit Suusse First Boston (Ukrame) Lid. _ Kiev, Ukraine
Bombay, I S
) Limassol, Cypl’l‘JS




' NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the censoclidated balance sheet

31.12.87 31.12.88" Change Change
MONEY MARKET PAPERS CHF m CHF m CHF m %
Bulls of exchange and money market paper ehgmble for dlscount W|th central banks T 257 12177 -4 920 —-40.4
of whnch short and medrum term federaf seamtres T 9569 ?590 ------ —495? """""" —658
other b.l : of emhange and money market e 8878 ........ 5593 ........ 3285 ........... 587
TOTAL MONEY MARKET PAPERS 16 135 17 770 -1 635 -9.2

Form of security

Secured Cther
by mortgage security Unsecured Total
SECURED CLAIMS BALANCE SHEET CHFm CHFm CHF m CHFm
Clai December 31, 1997 0 113 104 30 888 143 992
.o FER ST OO U SO OO U OOV PRRTTR 0 . JOr 599 ......... 1689 ....103 288
T S . 0 . 5 464 ...... 3 6930 42 394
...................................................................................................... 32 75018 31767 106817
P aseagreements ................. o 53?56‘ ........ 82?4 62 030
O - OO OSSO SR TR 7164 O ................. 0 7 164
of thch resfdentra,' et e A e e h R e eeh £ e R e e SRS S ee e et e s hm et e s e s h e e em e er e eranns eesenemeranes 80 ................. 0 ................. 0 80
houses and .(.)W”er_occupmd ﬁafs et eaee e eEe oA et ek e ee Attt s sh et et smne et en et nnee e eeeeeesenes 387 ................. O ................. O 387
. - 49?2 ................. 5o O 4912
ndusz‘na.’property ............ 354 O O 354
i vt D Oy OO PSSO RO RPN 7431 ................. O ................. 0 1431
Total Iendings December 31, 1997 7 196 75 018 31 767 113 981
PR fendmg and e repurchase agreements....,.................A.......................... 0 53 ?‘56 6‘2 030
December 3 Tses O U O USRS OO SRR 67735 42 499 S ‘...'1 42 808
Form of security
Secured Other
i by morigage security Unsecured Total
SECURED CLAIMS OFF-BALANCE-SHEET BUSINESS CHF m CHF m CHFm CHF m
Contingent liabilities
Credit guarantees in the form of aval, quarantee and indemnity liabiites 0o 4167
Bldbonds,delweryandperformancebonds|ettersofmdemn|ty ....................................................................
Other performance-related guarantees 20 1 098
Irrevocablecomm|tments|nrespectofdccumentarycredrts ........................................................................................ 2 49
OtherconilngentI|ab|ht|es ................................................................................................................................... E 74
Total contingent liabilities December 31 1997 27 5588
....................................................................... December31,1996 QQ] 7115
Irrevocable commitments December 31 1997 1 24 868
December 31 1996 136 ...... 2 5009
Call llablhtles December 31, 1997 0 0 4 T4
...................................................................... December311995 0 0 71 71
Confirmed credits December 31 1997 0 10 463 473
December 31 1996 ettt e in rereesarne s 0 O ............ 5 10 ............ 5 10
Total off-balance-sheet business December 31 1997 28 30 466 52 654 82 148
December 31 1996 ettt ene reeaaneas 357 ...... 3 2]24 ...... 5 0062 ...... 8 2543

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which also includes Retail and
Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented within
the Credit Suisse Group.

* The Bank represented by its Guernsey branch issued USD 5 billion credit linked notes (CLN), which were bought
py Triangle Funding Ltd., Cayman Islands, The interest and amortization payments of the CLN's are directly funded
through the cash flows of the reference assets.
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» NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consoiidated balance sheet

LENDINGS (CLAIMS ON CUSTOMERS, MORTGAGES) BY ECONOMIC SECTOR

Swiss borrowers? Foreign borrowers? Total lendings

31.12.97  31.12.967 311287 31298 34297 31296 Change Change 9% of total % of total
CHFm CHF m CHFm CHFm CHFm CHFm CHF m % 311297 311288

Private households 177 34 597 1051 3 340 1228 37937 -36709 -96.76 1.1 26.6
Non-profit institutions : 31 2212 836 260 867 2472 -~1605 -64.923 0.8 1.7

Private sector enterprises
(non-financial) 1537 38002 25067 27 113 26604 65115 -38 511 -59.14 23.3 45.6

0 862 959 997 953 1589 -830 -sae5 08 11
31 —11648 -5213 94 15.6

i

T

B T e e e e e
T D - R O

BT he T R i e

Y, B s T

Tobacco L

Tex z‘.'les

C.’Dthmg, Shoes Efc R

Timber, furmrure

Plastncs, rubber, Iea fher
Chem:cafs . '
Of.'

Non-meta.’frc mrneran's

Metafs, bun’dmg mstal!at:ons

it i i e L T 2O
e e e Sl e

i e i e dend aess i o
9763 13634 10785 36063 25278 -7008 65 253
9 1634 3851 2831 12240 -9900 -8096 21 86
B R T R
O 0 ot P P

Constructlon
Energy‘ enwronmental protect:on :
Ser\flces

Who!esafe and reta:f rrade 7

Transpon‘ hofe.fs and cate i

Other services

Publlc sector enterprises

1 045 1348 -303 -22.43 0.9 1.0

pubhc aUthormes 12. A
Other bo"owe,s | 0 1299 21294 2376 21294 4175 17119 41004
TOTAL LENDINGS 3857 87246 110124 55557 113 981 142 803 -28 822 -20.18 100.0 100.0
% of total 3.4 61.1 96.6 38.9 100.0 100.0

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which
alsc includes Retail and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore
mited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.

? By tustomer domicile.
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* NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consclidated balance sheei

31.12,97 31.12.964 Change Change
SECURITIES AND PRECIOUS METALS TRADING PORTFOLIO CHE m CHF m CHF m %
Interest bearmg secuntles and loan stock nghts 72 196 18 792 53 404 284.2
of whrch o bonds and cash bonds r 182 ............... 5 e R
- whrch [ssued bypubhc Secmr enm,es e e T Sisen o
Ouoted o stock exchanges etttk ea Rt s ettt bttt eeeees el e T
Not quoted o stock exchanges et LA ettt e veas 3158’? ............. 518 ....... e S
Equltles 28 671 15 077 13 594 90.2
of thch Cred.'t Su:sse Gmup shares‘ 7372 ............. 953 ............. e 440
S, equ o P R e Gen P
Quotedonstockexchanges ...................................................................................................................... el ees T e o
Notquotedonstockexchanges .................................................................................................................. o ce T ey S e
Precious metals 1518 1917 -399 -~20.8
of which serving as cover for delivery commitments shown as labilities 1518 1917 —399 —208
TOTAL SECURITIES AND PRECIOUS METALS TRADING PORTFOLIO 102 385 35 786 66 599 186.1
of which securities eligible for discount with central banks 7 794 21 190 2719
Substantial claims and liabilities included in other balance sheet positions.
These are valued at market rates and any profit/loss on them is shown under
Net trading income
Lending of tradi 4 740 29 083 6138
.......... PR 23889 5044
.................. - 5194 S
Tee12 24451 369.8
.......... o 6836
.......... S e P
....... 5 493 o e
Negative replacement values of derivatives from trading portfolio (other liabilities)  ..5.50 603 23286 17317 520

' Current positions in Credit Suisse Group shares {(formerly CS Holding) are subject to delivery commitments
under derivatives contracts. When these commitments are taken into account, the CSF8's holdings of
Credit Suisse Group shares are insignificant.

? Shown in the balance sheet as due from banks or customers.

* Shown in the bafance sheet as due to banks or customers.

* Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which also includes Retail
and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented
within the Credit Suvisse Group.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated balance sheet

Book value Cost® Market value®
31.12.97 31.12.967 31.12.87 31.12.967 31.12.97 31.12.967 Change
FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS" CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHE m
Interest-beari iti 6 526 7 636 - - -
of wh:ch own bonds and cash bonds 375 10
of wh:ch .'ssued by pubhc sector enf.'!.'es 2639 5 306 - - -
of wh:ch Va.'ued at accrua.' mefhod 2344 ~6 - - -
of wh:ch va.'ued at !ower of cost or markef 4182 - 4182 -* 4182
Quoted an stock exchanges 2 872 5615 - - -
No‘( quoted on stock exchanges 3 654 1021 - - -
Equmes 21838 809 2 263 2 392 1379
of wh!ch quahfymg equrty mterests 2z - - - - - 221
of whwch Credxt Su:sse Group shares . .0 o - - - - o
Precious metal 0 0 ¢ 0 0
Real estate® 1043 0 1043 o 1043
TOTAL FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 1312
of which securities eligible for discount with central banks - - - - 4512
Borrowing of financial investments? - - 0 0 2726
borrowed from banks - - 505
borrowed from customers - - ¢ o 2221
Lending of financial investments? 0 ) - - 4] ] o]
Vnvestments which are not held for trading or participation purposes (equity participations and real estate).
? At least 109% capital or voting rights.
3 Shown in the consolidated balance sheet as due to banks or customers.
* Shown in the consolidated balance sheet as due from banks or customers.
3 Details only for financial investments that are valued at the lower of cost or market.
* Not available.
? Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which also includes Retail and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore
limited due 1o the restructuring imptemented within the Credit Suisse Group.
* Real estate held for resale are now included under financial investments rather than under tangible fixed assets. The repossessed real estate as of January 1, 1997,
amounted to CHF 318 million,
N.12.97 31.12.967 Change
NON-CONSOLIDATED PARTICIPATIONS CHE m CHF m CHF m
Ouoted on stock exchanges o G 0
Not quoted on stock exchanges 272 507 ~-235
TOTAL NON-CONSOLIDATED PARTICIPATIONS 272 507 -235
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+ NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FiINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated balance sheet

Accumulated Investments/ Extraordinary
deprecia- Met book  Translation Income deprecia- Net book

Cost tions value difference  from equily Disposals Transfers Deprecation tiens value
FIXED ASSETS AT 1.1.97 1.1.97 31.12897
DECEMBER 31, 1997 CHFEm CHF m CHF m CHF m CHE m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m
Participations accounted for
using the equity method 182 0 182 11 3 -58 0 166
Other participations 111 Q 111 o]
Total participations 293 [} 293 11
Bank premises 3 b&3 -605 2 958 25
QOther real estate 1311 -418 893 o]
of which real estate
heid for resalg’ i 00t -416 586 o
Total real estate? 4 874 -1 023 3 851 25
Leasehold improvemenis 594 -340 264 15
Other physical assets 1303 -469 834 33
Total tang}ble fixed
assets 6771 -1 832 4 939 73 732 =239 -586 -323 -27 4 562
Goodwill* 0 ¢ 0 o] 0 G 0 o] Q 0
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 7 064 -13832 5 232 84 763 -302 -586 -323 -27 4 841

* Real estate held for resale are now included under financial investments rather than under tangible fixed 2ssets. The repossessed reai estate as of January 1, 1997,
amounted to CHF 316 million. All real estate held for resale are transferred to financial invesiments.

? The bulk of real estate is used for the banking infrastructure needs of Credit Suisse Group. Real estate owned by the Bank but used by Credit Suisse or other enlities
within Credit Suisse Group is held for rental to such entities.

3 Prior to January 1, 1947, goodwill was charged directly agamst shareholders' equity. Had goodwill been recorded in the consalidated balance sheet and depreciated through
the consolidated income statement, net profit would have amounted to CHF 1,284 million, a decrease of CHF 36 million (1996: consolidated net loss would have been
CHF 52 million Righer). The figures shown for total assets and shareholders’ equity would have been CHE 76 million higher (1996: CHF 130 million). Since January 1,
1997, acquired goodwill is capitalised and depreciated over its estimated useful kfe (cf. ‘Censoiidation and accounting policies’).

FURTHER DETAILS ON FIXED ASSETS

Fire insurance value of bank premises and other real estate

Fire insurance value of other physical assets

Liabilities: future leasing instalments in connection with operational leasing

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group} which
alse includes Retail and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore
limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.
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' INOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated balance sheet

PLEDGED AND ASSIGNED ASSETS 311297 31.12.96"

AND ASSETS UNDER

RESERVATION OF OWNERSHIP CHEm CHF m CHF m CHF m
On the balance sheet date, the following Book value of which  Book vaiue of which
assets were not freely available: of C|aImS used of claims used
SecuntlesandfmanmalassetsforIombardloans ...................................................................... 2 857 438 1892 O
SecunhesandfmanmalassetsforJomtprOJectswnhotherbanks .......................................... 0 .................... 0 ................. 6 O .................... 1
o e vamants 2 586 1 777 R 1168
Cla:msonbanks/customermargmsforOTCtradmg ................................................................. 1 887 1 368 '?48 748
Borrowers mor‘tgage notes used to prowde mor‘tgagel;::over in the amount of 0 O 1 478 1228
Pledged SECUrlerS fOf savmgs bank |Iabl|ltles |n the amount Of 0 0 2 085 Q 018
o 41944 18311 6 432 5 270
TOTAL 48 774 .- 21894 13 121 10 433

* Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group)
which also includes Retail and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures
is therefore limited due o the restructuring implemented within the Credit
Suisse Group.

* Netably, assets pledged as security for the CSFB's international business
activities in compliance with local regulations.

None of the CSFB's asseis were under reservation of ownership either in 1997 or in the previous year.

LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF OWN PENSION FUNDS

On the balance sheet date, total liabilities in respect of the CSFB's own pension funds amounted to CHF 771 million
(former Credit Suisse as of December 31, 1996: CHF 0% miilion).
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« NOTES TO CONSQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the censclidated balance sheet

BONDS AND MORTGAGE-BACKED BONDS ISSUED BY THE CENTRAL
MORTGAGE BOND INSTITUTIONS AND THE CENTRAL ISSUING OFFICE

31.12.86'
CHF m

Change
CHF m

BOnds

Bonds |ssued by the SW|ss central Jssumg offlces

Bonds and mortgage backed bonds |ssued by the Sw:ss central mortgage bond lnstltut ions

Subpart:cnpahon

TOTAL

! Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstait {SKA Group) which also includes Retail
and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented
within the Credit Suisse Group.

2 To banks within Credit Suisse Group.

BONDS AND MORTGAGE BONDS ISSUED BY CSFB (PARENT COMPANY)

Redemption Coupon

Year of issue

Callable
from

- Qutstanding amount

in millions

2.1998 475%

g T 700%

Hiees TR o

1998

G g
e e i
e
L

098 B8 !

1988

1990

gy

<.1990

1991

ey
1264

CHF

i
G
L
CHF
e
s
s

Dt

80.000 *
6000
4000

1 498,300 2

3.000

5.000

5000

5000

200.000

- 32003 ..‘...............3500/0

S Eees ‘.‘..."."...”6130/0
) 1A1.2003 625 %

LA12004 850@5ﬁ:ﬁ::ﬁﬁffﬂf'”"”ffﬁﬁfﬁﬁ::ﬁfﬁff"ffm"7"”””"”"”"m"‘””"M””"
cae 122004 PETTrrPeT 6 130/0 PR P R TR T T - N rrasras e rrrrarasrrasarasiran e - -
. 32005 5750/0 B T

perpetuai 825%

40

B

SEGes “'684%
perpetual 790% _ -
perpetual o

_nfiﬂ?ﬁéﬁ U
112000
'ffﬁéﬁﬁi U

ujiiééﬁf ¢
2008 &

"125.000't
200,000
~600.000 *
180.000 ¢

000
300,000 *
100,000
995000 1
“100.000
'"200000

237500 \

95,000 +4

500000 *2

'"1000001
500.000 12

..180.000 12




NOTES TQ CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated balance sheet

Redemption Coupon

Year of 1ssue

Callable
from

Outstanding amount

e millions

3.2016 5.00%
perpetual TTAY%

1986

3.2008
TB.2007

CHF

200000
100.000 *

BONDS ISSUED BY SUBSIDIARIES

Crédit Suisse (Luxembourg) SA, Luxembourg

122001 9.13%

2 500.000 1

8.2003 725 %

1 500.000 1

Credit Suisse First Boston Finance (Guernsey) Lid., Guernsey

22000 _0.00%

B T P

500000
500.000

Credit Suisse First Boston International {Guernsey) Ltd., Guernsey

10.1998 561%

PBGRE TTTTE R  T

~ 500000
300.000

11.1998 5.62%

111998 R

125,000
200,000

Credit Suisse First Boston Finance B.V,, Amsterdam

~11.1998 9.00%

B T - SO

8 Cl

uso

uso
usb

e
G
i —
R —
Gen

867416
950 000
102 894

56 000

)

729
53930 1
808991

150. OOO '
200.000 1
200,000 1

Credit Suisse First Boston Inc., New York

2.1898 6.81%

B

Q

IR i ZTBR 1
e«
IR e B s el
IR B
L1998 T BANK e

iaiees T '“637%

R ..,...,..j,.,....6.1g°/0

5000
5000

5000
2,000

250,000

00

708
s
2208
e
C U B0.000
" BD.O0O




*NOTES 7O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated balance sheet

Redemption Coupon Year of 1ssue

Qutstandmg amount

in millions

136.147 1

e
e
EBRGT T ey

T L T
RS T R

92002 B S T

2003 T Te8%
7.19%

."660% . 1563

644%
e
A i e
e
R T

S e 1988

various 6.50%
various “Variable

WBIBW e e ffifff.'ﬁff.‘993 e

EsEe - i...........1996 -

Uso .

T T
6610/0 Mearamaariaaaae 1995 FEETrT

.......661 0/0 o5

(DEM T
ust

20000
5000
gl
“EGGE
50000
o 35000
' 7000
20999 "
10750

106 686

100.000
"Qooooo'
4975'
337195'
15000'
15000'

~ 1993-1995

var;ous vanabIe 561

1995/96 o

.. 85487
) 56 043 !
40297 1

Credit Suisse Financial Products, London

219980008 Zero Coupon Notes T T SSE T B
101998 variabe Floating Rate Notes e 1998 FRE

11668 000% Zero Cougon Notes : e e 997

LBI898 [ 000% Zero Cowpon Notes T Se

% Zero Coupon Notes e

1 25% - T5ed

42

. . 199871997 T CHE
vanous e e 1995-“1997 O TR

T .1996 1997

75020
18780
400 000

5

'"33533100
14 500.000
g e

issstioer m::::"m""._m"m“m"

358 650
276670
1088351
93000
‘97000
53500
17 000.000




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated balance sheet

Callable Outstanding amount
Redemption Coupon Year of issue from in millions

1999_ various 1996~-1997 _q_PY 1 085000

4.1999 775% 1992 XEU 47000
B T S
R ................300% Index-imkedNotes P XTI ¥ At

112000 T O GBF’Q5000
. QOOO T PO 110000000
D T 11995 See T e 90717316
aseen T RS Zero Coupon Index ||nked Notes e e 1994 e 25000
......72000 m“mwmvanabie Fioa’nng Rais Notes e 5000000
T various .1992 oeT T Uas 279095
OO T R agy T GEETT 100000
e “mm“m"varlable FioatlngRa‘teNotes g s 10000
B 3 108 GoRGE

L ]997 T }5569300

L .1994 1997 s 545340
. 52001. e Fioatnng Rate Notes . . 1994 e 15000

102002 ..A...A..A...A.va”abe, Floatmg Rate Notes S 750001
S .1996 I Ve s
e ZeroCouponNotes . aeT T T e G 056
e .1996—1997 T

O T iaes T LR T R Ba0650

7 T .1996—1997 e 489660
. 72002 B ZeroCouponNotes . ; 1997 e 10000
. 62003 I QOOOOO

TReRE T R S C0upon Notes B i 26000
rrgs e Ll Coupon R T e
....... B P ITL30000000
2003 S
82003 T 1993 e 1 5000001
L ,}994 1997 e e 214570

Cened T e S CoUpon Notes . 1994 P 130001

oA m"“m”mvarlable Floatmg Raie Noies s DEM e

T Y SR ‘1996 D ITi_m 293 T

e ZeroCouponNotes . 1997 T 35 OOO S5

T e 12300000

Caeed T R0 0 ZeroCouponNotes e R e o660
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: NOTES TOQ CONSCULIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated balance sheet

Callable Qutstanding amount
Redemption Coupon Year of issue from 1 miliions

8.70% Dual Currency Bonds - 1896 ) JPY 500,000

various

0.00%

.......... 0.00% Zero Coupc ' 7 ...10:2000 &
various
.............. VBIOUS e

various
...................................... \.’ b Floa’nngRateNotes

SRS Sers G Notes .1993_1994
il e et 1997

T _,,‘....,......va”able
. 2008 e L 600000
ORI ool e 64 275
Wb b
579"
’ ﬁl_'""'"'w oooooo
ey Tq 500000

L USD 85000

v“vanous
000%
vanabi

varlous

VaFIOUS

: ]:ﬂ_""""a_q_oooooo‘

_Uso 88600
U5 147975

0

S it
L 250 oooooo‘
T UsD 29,000
R
000
Jey 5000000
CPTE 1700000
. Uso 28000

s G iy
o G

S e
“gagiE S o

g Ra
...000% P Coupon Bonds
e Zero Coupon Bonds

::_OOO% Zero Coupon Bonds

s e i Goo00s
uso 8l 361
DEM 40 000

10 2027
perpetual

. 001
e varlable FloatngateNotes e QO 0000001
perpetual e e eeer 1997 e S 60000‘
perpetual :“Mm""ivanable FloatngateNotes 1992 1997

1 Subordinated bonds.

7 Credit finked notes issued by Credit Suisse First Boston Guernsey branch.
? Issued by Credit Suisse First Boston London branch,

* Issued by Credit Suisse First Boston Nassau branch.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated balance sheet

Impact of

transfer of

Recoveries,

Charges
to consoli-

endangered Net charges dated income

Write-backs
credited to

companies interest,  to consoli- statement consolidated
VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS resulting from Specific  Reclassifi- currency dated income {extra- income
AND PROVISIONS/ Total restructuring Total write-downs cations’  differences statement ordinary) statement Totai
RESERVES AGAINST 31.12.96* 1.1.87 81.12.87
GENERAL BANKING RISKS CHF m CHF m CHFm CHF m CHF m CHF m CHFm CHF m CHF m CHF m
Valuation adjustments and
provisions for default risks
(debtor and country rlsks) -149 231 3 3566 8] 0 1081

Valuahon ad;ustments and

10 157

-8 517

s for other r:sks 463 0 536
Prowsmns for restructurmg 200 0 356
Prowsuons for taxes and
deferred taxes 614 465 1079 ~888 0 115 7801 0 0 1085
Other provzsmns 105 373 478 -262 68 -3 80 83 0 448
Total write-downs and
prowsmns 11 539 -8 724 2 815 -1467 ~5 i1 1329 713 0 3 506
Less direct charge-offs agamst .
specific assets 9357 -886b 492 507
Total write-downs and provi- . :
sions shown in balance sheet 2182 141 2323 2 999
Reserves against e
general banking risks 432 =20 412 0 0 0 0 0 o 412

# CHF 5 million has been transferred to Credit Suisse. The CHF 236 million relates to a reclassification of liquidity risk in Emerging Markets to country/debtor risk. The balance of
CHF 68 million represents other risks which have been reclassified to be consistent with Credit Suisse Group presentation,

* CHF 85 million deviatien to income statement due 1o deferred tax assets that are net included in the provisions.

? Includes extraordinary provision for the purchase of the UK and continental European equities, equity capital markets, mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance advisory

businesses of BZW of CHF 332 million.

* Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which also includes Retail and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore fimited

due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.

1T provision for year 2000 and EMU events.
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 NOTES TQO CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additiocnal information on the consolidated balance sheet

Sight
deposis Caliable Maturty Total

MATURITY STRUCTURE OF within within over 1 to
CURRENT ASSETS 3 months 3-12 months 5 years  over § years Mo matunty®
AND BORROWED FUNDS CHFm CHEm CHF m CHF m CHF m CHFm CHFm CHFm
Current assets
Cash ..................................................................................... 2049 ............. RRRARECT R S SR 2049
o 0 O ..... : 1009 4993 ........... : 33 ............. O e 16135
Duefrombanks ................................................................. 587’? ....... Q 452 121096 9997 ....... 3 550 ............ go e .A1 43 992
Duefromcustomers ........................................................... 3549 .......... 622 84457 ...... 9393 ....... 5 432 ,,,,,, 2 354 e ..1 Os 81 7
MOanQES 0 43 .......... 608 .......... 850 ....... 39?4 ...... 1589 I 7 164
Se(:urmesandprec|ousmeta|tradmgportfono 102385 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, RERCTERE RRREERE DR e - - e ..102 385
o DT 2 188 ............ 82 3145 ....... 1389 ....... 1613 .......... 297 1043 . 9757
Total current assets December 31 1997 117 048 3199 220 255 26 622 15 702 4 430 1043 388299
ererne ettt n et tr e e nrra e December 31 1996‘ I 56 256 32443 ..... 73762 ..... 4 5971 33733 7698 s ..249 863
Borrowed funds
VLIabllItleS m respect. of money market paper O .............. O .... 1 4153 ------ 3366 --------- 232 --------------- O L 17751
Due to banks 498‘70 ....... 3 e 139625 11399 ,,,,,, 2360 71 ................. - 206500
Due to custom.ers O G g 00 U O Oy OO
m savmgs and mvestment deposxts 0 2019 276 0 O 0 -
Due to customers, other dep03|ts 7895 ....... 1163 87290 ..... 1 3234 ..... 4 252 .......... 702 e
Bonds and mortgage backed bonds Rt S 1 392 ....... 4 044 .,...18 171 ”390 s
Total borrowed funds December 31 1997 57 765 6 457 242736 32043 25015 12 163 -

‘December 31, 19967 38278 53806 106028 16520 14069 11689 - 240399

* Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt {(SKA Group) which also includes Retail and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures 1s therefore limited
due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.

? As a result of changes to the accounting principles the financial investments include repossessed real estate held for resale, The maturity structure has been amended and
discloses no maturity items.

CLAIMS ON AND LIABILITIES TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES, 31.12.97 31.12.96" Change Change
AND LOANS TO MEMBERS OF THE BANK'S GOVERNING BODIES CHF m CHF m CHF m %
Claums on afflhated companzes 6 438 '7 426 -988 -133
Llabllltles o af‘f|||ated compames et 4 527 g T
LoanstomembersofCSFB’sgovermngbodles“ 0 251 ........ el - 1000

1 Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which also includes Retail and Prvate Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited
due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.

* Affiliated companies are entities which are not subsidiaries of Credit Suisse First Boston but which are grouped together under unitary management within the crganisation of
Credit Suisse Group.

? The heading ‘Loans to members of the bank's governing bedies’ includes all claims on Members of the Board of Directors,
Executive Management and the statutory auditors and on any companies controlled by them.
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Minority
interests Total Total
1697 1987 1867 1996 Change Change
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m %

Beginning shareholders’ equity

Share capltal 3149 0 3149 Q 149 1 OOO 485
Capltal v ......4307 0 430? 4 408 _101 _23
Retamed eammgg 992 B 922 .....‘4935 . _4 013 ,.....~81 P
Mmonty mterests :n-shareholders eqU’ty O 881 881 764 . 117 153
Resewes agamst general bankmg ”Sks 412 O 412 439 —QO —46
Consohdated o 0 0 0 1021 _]021 ......_1000
Total beginning shareholders’ equity as of January 1, 1997/96 8 790 831 9671 13709 ~4 038 =-29.5

Capltal mcrease

i mvestments - Sub5|d¢ar|es O R 290 2 288 e
Payments

D|V|dend e s 0 A537 R “““1000
o by subsrdlarles - mmomy Fros e e 122 S

Foreign currency translation differences 102 7 169 349 =240 -68.8
Goodwill purchases o 0 0 -6 6 100.0

Changes in scope of consolldatlon

i subS!dlary to Credlt Smsse re"oadwew o Januaryl 1997 B 21 0 21 s
Consolidated net profit/loss 1214 0 -1214 -1 705 2 919 171.2
Net profit minority shareholders 0 106 106 261 =155 59.4
Total shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 1997/96 10 112 11852 11297 11 837 =540 -4.6

Share capital 3 149 ¢} 3 149 2 ‘149 1000 46,5
Cap|tai reserves 4 307 O ......4307 S 408 ..A..A._101 _23
Retamed eammgs s 030 O 1 030 5637 . _4 607 ..“”—817
Mlnonty mterests m shareholders eqmty mcludmg net proflt FE - 1185 1 185 o 916 ) 259 294
Resewes agamst genera| bankmg nsks 412 0 412 432 —Qo —4,6
Consohdated o prc}flt/loss 1214 0 e 214 _1705 2919 1719

IMPACT OF RESTRUCTURING CHF m
Shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 1996 11 837
Share capltal 1 000

Capttal reserves -101
Re’(amed earmngs -3010
Mmonty mterests ln shareholders equ:ty -35

Reserves agamst general bankmg risks ' -20

Total impact of restructuring -2 1663
Shareholders’ equity as of January 1, 1997 9 671

* Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which also includes Retail and Private Banking. The
comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.

2 CHF 792 million represents perpetual non-cumulative non voting preferred shares held by Credit Suisse Group as direct
investments in subsidiaries of Credit Suisse First Boston.

* Net CHF -2,166 million represents dividend in kind of Swiss Retail and Frivate Banking business of CHF -5,089 m:llion,
a contribulion in kind of former CS First Boston of CHF 2,403 million and investment minority interest in subsidiares of
CHF 500 million.




 NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additicnal information on the consolidated balance sheet

31.12.97 31.12.96"

BREAKDOWN OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: Switzerland Abroad Swatzerland Abroad
SWITZERLAND AND ABROAD (BY LOCATION OF ASSETS) CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m

Assets

‘ 1 050
14 647
135 297

Due from banks
Due from customers

Modgages

Fmancxal mvestments

Non Consondated pammpatlons
Tang!bfe f,xed assets
Accrued mcome and prepa,d expenses
TOTAL ASSETS

Liabilities and sharehoiders’ equity

Liabilities in respect of money market paper 438 17313 498 6409

Due 1o banks T oo 7ee 183844 14308 42196

Due to Costum‘ers. savmgs and mvestment deposnts 2 020 275 40 595 3723

Due to customers, other dep05|ts 32 183 82 353 41 252 65 497

N 48 155 11369 2467
‘2499, 1668 514

Tofa,' ,r,ab,,r,f,es 6?595 _.374 002 129003 5 e

Reserve against general banking risks

'Valuatlon adjustments and prcwsmns

Total shareholders’ equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

381 697 138 127 155 264

* Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group} which also includes Retail
and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented
within the Credit Suisse Group.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated baiance sheet

GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF ASSETS : sL12.97 a1.12.96" Change
(BY LOCATION OF ASSETS) CHFm % of total CHF m % of total CHFm %
Switzerland 38135 ‘8.4 120 790 41.2 -82 655 ~68.4
- 127 274 5198 32076 337
133.5
185.0
............ o
......... P
2656
Gil-producing countries* 114.0
Newly industrialised countries® 2058

Eastern Europe and Commonwealth

of Independent States® c.4 11 750 9824
Other developing countries? L2758 2 496 0.9 262 105
Total assets outside Switzerland 414 759 172 601 58.8 242 158 140.3
TOTAL ASSETS 452 394 293 391 100.0 159 503 54.4

The above analysis is based on the location of asset and does not take any collateral
or hedges through structured off-balance-sheet transactions into account. Market and
credit risks can therefore not be judged based on the above schedule.

Countries not listed separately above in which our assets amount to more than
CHF 100 million:

1 Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Greenland, reland, 'taly,
Luxembourg, Netherlands, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, United Kingdom.

2 Austrzlia, Liechtenstein, New Zealand, Norway, Scuth Africa.

* Aruba-Curagao (Netherl. Antilles), Bahamas, Bermuda, Cayman Islands, Panama.

* Bahrein, Ecuador, Indenesia, Iran, Kuwait, Mexico, Saudia Arabia, Venezuela,

s Argentina, Brazil, Chile, Colombia, Egypt, Israel, Lebanon, Malaysia, Morocco, Philip~
pines, South Korea, Taiwan, Thailand, Turkey, Uruguay.

* Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, Russian Federation, Slovac Republic, Tutkmenistan,
Ukraine.

7 China, india.

* Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which

also includes Retail and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore
limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.




. NQTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consoclidated balance sheet

CHF usp Other currencies Total

CURRENCY STRUCTURE 31.12.97 31.12.96° 31.12.97  31.12.86' 311297 3112.96" 311297 3112.96"
OF THE BALANCE SHEET CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m

Assets

Non consohdated partlupahons
Tanglb e flxed assets 2771 4 g01
Accrued income and prepa:d expenses 636 814

‘Other assets 10518 110886 17 365 53865 35375
TOTAL ASSETS? 57 174 133 001 220 072 70 159 175648 90231 452 894 293 391

Llabllltles and shareholders' eqmty
Lnablhtzes B respect of “money market pap.é'r 15 49 ....15 304 5040 2432 1 818 . 37 751
Due to banks ....20 163 ,..A1 5 606 ""83 078 22991 108 359 .-“QO 902 206 600
Due to customérs savmgs and mvesiment deposnsmwmwM“ 2 094 “..44 077 251 230 10 1 1 2 5295
Due to customers. other deposlts 1'? 746 ....37 321 52538 388’70 '”.'-‘.--257 6
Bonds and mortgage-backe 4050 9 080 ““19 283 2924 ) 1 1 664 5874 ) 34 997
Accrued exper;.ses and deferred mcome 631 1 283 4 799 881 . 2 801 769 - 8 23]
Other Inab||xt|es 13469 ....12 e . 30 223 5 266 10 496 18373 - 54 188
Valuatlon adjustments and prows'ons 527 1 640- 1 899 - 31'? i 573 225 . 2 ggg
Total liabilities® 695 126 505 D07 980 76519 175508 78530 441 597 281 554
0 03T 42 43

Reserve agalnst general bankmg rlsks 412 395

Shareho iders' equity (excludmg rnmontymterests . T
pre consolldat net proflt/loss 2 851‘ 10 713 4743 877 - 892 504 8 486 12 194

Mincrlty Interests |n Shareholders eqU|ty Crmmmmmmmmmm—— 10 19 : 1 0694 V'Géé .:"'”“""".'6 ‘O - 1 079 ; 665
Coreieied o e o B o
= e b et
Total shareholders’ equity® Seve g eeze ioss 1066 724 11297 11837
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 62227 135633 214009 78504 176 658 79254 452 894 293 391

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt {SKA Group)

which also includes Retail and Private Banking. The comparability of the

figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.
? Currency breakdown excludes impact of off-balance-sheet transactions.
* Based upon functional cutrency cf reporting unit.
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NOTES TO CONSQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated balance sheet

FURTHER DETAILS 311297 31.12.96% Change Change
ON SELECTED BALANCE SHEET ITEMS CHF m CHF m CHF m Y%
Fmanua! Ieasmg
veh.de |eas|ng U OO PO PO UP SR 0 385 ,,,,,,,, - 385 ..... - 1000
Real estate Ieasar.'ng ............... 0 337 ........ - 337 ...... - 1000
Cap.falgoodsreasmg .............................................................................................................................. 281 451 ,,,,,,, _]70 _377
Tota} financial leasing’ 281 1173 -892 =76.0
Other assets
F’osstlve replacement vaiue of der vatlves 50946 33 493 ..... 17453 5?1
of Wmch posmve repfacement va,'ue of tradmg de”vames 50739 33 493 ..... 17246 5?5
of wmch posmve rep,'acement va,'ue of orher denvaf;ves° ettt et e reentee 207 O .......... 20? e
Tran5|t0ry accruals and deferrals ....... 1257 858 ---------- 399 ......... 465
Compensatlon account for adjustments io carrylng value havmg no income effect.”"“mmmm ............. 7 6 38 ............ 38 1000
i e 1586 ,,,,,,,,,, 986 .......... 600 ......... 609
Total other assets 52 865 35 375 18 490 52.3
Other Ilabl!ltles
Mortgages on own real esfate T O 346 -------- - 346 ---- - 1000
Negatlve replacement value of derwat:ves 50650 33286 ..... 1 7364 777777777 5!22
of wh:ch negaf.'ve repfacemenf va:‘ue of tradrng denvattves 50603 33286 ..... 173?7 520
of wh;ch other negatme repjacement va.'ue of orher der;vat;ves’ 4? 0 4? ............... -
Trans;tory accrua,s and deferrals e e e aaaias 1290 1 227 ............ 63 ............ 5 ]
Compensai:on acc0unt for adjustments to carrymg va ue havmg no mcome effect"m"mmmm ............ 98 176 —78 —448
o 2150 ....... 1005 ....... 1145 1139
Total other liabilities 54 188 36 040 18 148 50.4
Debt securmes
Money market papér 1775] 6907 ..... i 0844 e
Cash bonds et efeMeeLeateeay e heEe et eane e et eA b e R eE SRRt e £ s e b e et es ekt e b bt et etashe e s esininebeaeres eesesseesmenes 0 ....... 8 048 —8048 ..... - 1000
Bonds and mortgage backed bonds 3499’? ..... 16764 18238 1088
Total debt securities 52 748 31719 21 029 66.3
Clalms on assoc:ated companles and long term holdmgs
Due from banks 37 ............. 35 ............... 2 57
Due from customers 28 ............. 77 .......... _49 ....... —636
Mortgages 0 ............. 79 —72 ..... - 1000
Total claims on associated companies and long-term holdings 65 184 =119 -64.7
Llabllltles m respect of assoc:ated comp: i es a d long-term h dmgs
Due 10 banks O T U USROS 0 15 qg ..... - 1000
Duetocustomers ....................................................................................................................................... 15 ............. 59 o —746
Total liabilities in respect of associated companies and participations 15 74 ~59 ~79.7
* Shown in the balance sheet under 'Due from customers.
? Retfers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which also includes Retail
angd Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore hmited due to the restructuring implemented
within the Credit Suisse Group.

® The contract volume of asset and lability management interest rate nstruments 15 CHF 11.1 bithon.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated balance sheet

FURTHER DETAILS 31.12.97 31.12.96' Change Change
ON SELECTED BALANCE SHEET ITEMS CHF m CHF m CHF m %

Breakdown of subordinated balance sheet items

Assets subject to subordination clause
Due from banks i2 2 10 -

Due from customers 106 127 -2 165

Securities holdings To%g0 18 2094 -

N e eATe et ren R AT et et a8 e85 en s e ke an e e e p 5 Cone -
of which financial investments 300 134 166 123.9
Total assets subject to subordination clause 2 398 315 2 083 661.3

Liabilities subject to subordination clause
Due to banks 270 0 270 0.c

Due to customers 313 553 240 Z434

Bonds and mortgage-backed bonds 12 682 8243 4 439 539
Total liabilities subject to subordination clause 13 265 8 796 4 469 50.8

' Refers fo the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt {SKA Group) which also includes Retail
and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented
within the Credit Suisse Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on consolidated off-balance-sheet business

31.12.97 31.12.96° Change Change
OFF-BALANCE-SHEET BUSINESS CHFm CHF m CHF m %
Breakdown of contlngent Ilablhtles
Credrt guarantees in the form of aval guarantee and mdemmty Ilabllltnes 14425 14886 —461 —31
Iesssubpartlclpatlonsallocated —4763 —5680 .......... 917 ....... —161
B;dbondsdelweryandperformancebonds, ......................................................................................................................................................
Ieﬂers of mdemmty. other performance related guarantees 3816 7 02¢ ~3213 -45.7
|eSS subparhc:patlons ailocated -":é.'?"s —50 -------- “325 6500
|rrevocab|e comm|tments m respect o.f documentary cred.ts 3488 3295 ........... : 93 ............ 5 9
|ess SpramctpaﬂmS ajlocated _424 —98 ........ - 326 oo
o{her contmgem S ettt eL e ettt et ettt n et et eaeen e e eameeas 3 718 ....... 3320 .......... 398 120
Total contingent liabilities 19 885 22 702 -2 817 -12.4
Irrevecable commitments ' 62 786 59 260 3 528 6.0
Call liabilities o 4 71 -67 ~94.4
Confirmed credits (Acceptance credits) 473 510 -37 -7.3

Breakdown of f1duc1ary transachons
Fudumary placements wuth thlrd party mstltutxons 3 648 24 073 ~20 425 -84.8

Flducrary placements wnih afflllated banks 4 s} 4 -
Frgi and Other ﬁduc,ary 1ransact,on5 e ke e e 2 204 ........... 745 ....... 1459 1958
Total fiduciary transactions 5 856 24 818 -18 962 -76.4 -
Gross positive replacement value Credit equivalent®
Remaining life 31.12.97 Remaining life 31.12.97
< 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years Total <X 1 year 1-5 years > b years Total
OPEN DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS CHF bn CHFbn CHF bn CHF bn CHF bn CHF bn CHF bn CHF bn

Breakdown by maturlty

Tmal ,merest ra{e mstrument.s Y VPRUOOUN 36 .......... 179 ......... 232 447 35
TOta! fore,gn EXChange s e Q 56 ............ 5 8 ............ 19 ......... 333 351
Tota| premous meta|s e eeereeeeen 1 3 ............ 0 6 ............ O 1 ............. 2 o 18
Tota| eqwt,es/md,ces 51 50 ............ O 1 ........... 1 02 63
Tofa| o TP TUON 00 01 ............. 0 o ............ 0 1 02
Total 35.6 29.4 25.3 90.3 48.0 39.9 377 125.0
Contract volume Replacement value® Credit equivalent®
31.12.97 31.12.87 31.12.97
OPEN DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS? CHF bn % CHF bn % CHF bn Yo

Breakdown by internal bank rating®

AA ........... 14156 ................. 438 188 ................. 3 93 .................. 3 70
A ......................................................................................... 11314 ................. 350 115 ................. 941 .................. 245
BBB 3405 105 ................... 83 .................. 173 112
BBOHOWG; ........................................................................... 1417 44 40 84 49
Total 32344 100.0 47.8 1090 35.6 100.0

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizernische Kreditanstalt {SKA Group) which also inciudes Retail
and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.
? OTC contracts, excluding OTC option sales.
* Using Standard & Poor's rating structure.
*Taking account of legally enforceable netting agreements and zfter deduction of CRF 3.1 billion of assets pledged as security.
*Potenlial exposures: Positive replacement values plus add-on’s.
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NOTES' TQO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on consolidated off-balance-sheet business

Contract volume' Gross replacement values (RV)
Remaning ife 30267 3112967 31.12.97 31.12.967
Paositive MNegative Positive MNegative
OPEN DERIVATIVE <1year 1-Gyears >>5years Total Total RV* Rv*® Rv*® v
CONTRACTS CHF bn CHF bn CHF bn CHF bn CHF bn CHF bn CHF bn CHFbn CHFon

Interest rate instruments
o7C FRAs and other forward contracts

02
3

Opticns sofd

Traded Futures - -
Options _ -
Total interest rate instruments 36.5 33.3

Foreign exchange contracts

OTC  Forward contracts®?

Swaps‘ ..................................................
Options bought

Optiens sold

Traded Futures

Options
Total foreign exchange contracts 1178.9 133.8 62.7 13748 11259 33.3 33.1 22.9 25.0

Precious metal contracts

T g T s s e
I o S R T I Oty
G B S TLp TTTag TR g T e s

Traded PUres e 14 0 00 08 B8 T T T

oo - - o s e R -
Total precious metal contracts 22.3 10.5 3.4 36.2 3341 2.0 2.7 0.6 1.2

Equity/index contracts

OTC  Forward centracts 1.1 0.0 0.0 . 1.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
OptIOnSbOUgh‘t ....... e cem TS S 101 e 35 e
Optuonssold ....... e TR TTTTRE TTTiaam T i e 101 e o

Traded F 177 0.0 0.0 5.1 - - - -
6p rons e o 00 PO PUON 304 - - - -

Total equity/index contracts ' 160.3 103.3 4.9 123.9 10.2 101 3.5 3.9

Other contracts

s Forwardcontrads 00 55 (}o 55 50 v Y 54 55

Optiensbought 08 10 G 16 N 0.1 - 00 -

oo aaid 02 e OO 15 16 - 00 et 00
Traded Futures 6.7 2.8 0.0 9.5 0.8 - - - -

Gt ..0-3 03 00 06 25 - - - -

Total other contracts 7.7 5.4 0.1 13.2 5.8 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

TOTAL 25201 14110 735.2 4 666.3 3 098.8 90.3 89.1 63.3 63.4

of which QTC contract voiume 1951.8 1267.6 7308 39502 238526

Replacement value taking into consideration legally enforceable netting agreements 47.8° 48.7 ¢ 31.1° 33.1

' Gross volume of purchases and sales (proprietary and customer transactions). * Positive replacement value after deduction of CHF 3.1 billion (1996: CHF 2.1 billien) of |

? Including outstanding spet transactions. assets pledged as securily; negative replacement value do not include replacement values of

? Of which up te one month: CHF 276.5 bitlien. CHF 1.0 billion for traded derivatives.

* Cross-currency interest rate swaps. 7 Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which glso

® No replacement values are shown for traded derivatives {fulures and traded includes Retail and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due
options} subject to daily margining requirements. to the restructusing implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.
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NQOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated income statement

ANALYSIS OF INCOME CHF m CHF m CHF m Y%
BREAKDOWN OF INCOME FROM INTEREST BUSINESS

lnterest and dlscount mcome

customers

Interest :n f m cla

Interest income

Interest income from leasing

Interest and dividend income from trading portfolio®

Interest |ncome

Dmdend income

Interest and dividend income from financial investments

Dividend income

Interest expense
Interest expense on llablhtles io customers
Int

of whjch mterest expense an subordmafed iabilities

Total income interest business

BREAKDOQWN OF COMMISSICN AND SERVICE INCOME

lncome from cred:t busmess 250 287 -37 -12.9
Cred|t commlssmns rmmmmmmmm————””—m—"— 253 ........... 3 07 ........ “54 —776
‘ess o e.xpense ”3 -20 ,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1 P ~850
Income from securltles busmess 15383 795 788 99.1
Commlssmn mcome from stock exchange busmess and securlt:es underwntlngA”mwwwm“ 1749 ........... 9 45 .......... 804 851
Iess e expense e 166 _150 .......... —16 .......... 1 07
Income from uwestment busmess 1885 1 772 113 6.4
Commussmn |ncome from mvestment busmess and asset management e 1 980 lllllll 1 84'? 133 72
Iess S expense e aeaaeenes _95 ....... _75 .......... HQO ......... 267
o comm|ss|on‘expense _4 —28 —857
Total commission and service income 3 758 3146 612 19.5

BREAKDOWN OF NET TRADING INCOME
(including derivatives and expenditure on brokerage/commissions)

Other income from trading 7 o 419 243 176 72.4

Total net trading income 4 791 2 157 2 634 1221

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizensche Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which also includes Retail
and Private Barking. The comparability of the figures is therefore imited due te the restructiuring implemented
within the Credil Suisse Group.

2 During 1996, funding costs for the securities trading portfolio were a2 component of both trading income and
income from mnterest business. Securities trading portfoho interest and dvidends were alse 2 component of
frading income, Commencing January 1, 1997, securities trading portiolic interest and dividends are included in
income from inlerest business and funding costs for the secunties trading portfolio were eliminated as a com-
ponent of trading income. Prior year financial statements have been restated.
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. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the conselidated income statement

1997 996" Change Change
ANALYSIS OF EXPENSES CHFE m CHF m CHF m En
PERSONMNEL EXPENSES '
Personnel compensatlon 4 943 2902 70.3
T T e e .
L s e i
Total personnel expenses 5 4382 3 562 53.9

PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

Bank premlses and real estate 288 336 ~48
Expendlture on IT machmery. furnlshmgs, vehlcles and other eqmpmentwmm7“wmmmmmm 187 .......... 227 —40
Expense aIIocatmns from Cred;t Su:sse Group BU/entmes e i 383 ............... 5 5
Expense allocatmns to Credut Swsse Group BU/ent|t|es s mreeeeas e 5 “5on
Other properm equment and adm|n|strat|ve costs e areraes 1106 ....... 1081 ............. o5
of Whmh commun.‘catrons and advg,—t;smg cosrs et meeenaees 146 B
- Whmh fegar and consu”ancy fees et h bbb bt et 265 .......... pom
of Whmh fees and Commrssjons 90 e
SR othercosts S
Total property, equipment and administrative costs - 1639 1 644 =5

DEPRECIATION AND WRITE-DOWNS ON NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Deprec;atlon on tanglble flxed assets . 679
i, whrch repossessed rea.' estate e et e e e ettt e e enn s maenrnnenns hesizslenieimes eeesenes 158
of whrch ey estafe U SO O TP IO f04
Total depreciation and write-downs on non-current assets 679 -52.4

BREAKDOWN OF VALUATION ADIUSTMENTS, PROVISIONS AND LOSSES

Provisions and valuation adjustments for default risks {debtor and country risks}

of which losses in credit business

Total valuation adjustments, provisions and losses

1 Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which also includes Retail
and Private Banking. The compavability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented
within the Credit Suisse Group,
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. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated income statement

ANALYSIS OF EXTRAORDINARY 1887 1996" Change Change
INCOME AND EXPENSES CHF m CHF m CHF m %
BREAKDOWN OF EXTRAQORDINARY INCOME

Gains realised from the disposal of participations 20 0 20 -
Gamsreailsedfromthedlsposaloftangfbleflxedassets ........................................................................... 17 ............... P e
O the rextraordmarym Come ............................................................................................................................ 41 .............. oo e R
Total extraordinary income 78 83 -5 -6.0

BREAKDOWN OF EXTRAORDINARY EXPENSES

Restructuring costs as a result of the Credit Suisse-SVB merger

Other extraordinary expenses

Total extraordinary expenses

* Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstait (SKA Group) which also includes Retail
and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.
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. NOTES TO CONSOULIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the consolidated income statement

1997 1995
BREAKDOWN OF INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM Switzerland Abroad Switzerland Abroad
ORDINARY BANKING BUSINESS: SWITZERLAND AND ABROAD CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m
Income from interest business 143 1 902 21372 719
Commlssmns and service income 748 3 010 ....... 2 560 ---------- 586
.......... 384 4 407 L 9382 1394
Net other ordmary income 122 76 ---------- 311 .......... 36
NET OPERATING INCOME 1397 9 395 5 946 2735
Operating expenses
Personnelexpenses 469 2548 ....... 1014
ofwh,'ch pe rsomej compensanon ..................................................................................................... 395 > . 548 ,,,,,,, 2 07 I .......... 877
of wh.lch staffbenef.vrs 5? 242 .......... S 98
of wh.'ch other staff costs e 223 ........... 130 39
Properfyequmentandadm|n|strat|vecosts ............................................................................................ 304 ....... 1335 ....... 1168 476
ofwhlchbankprem.lses 25 .......... 264 .......... 235 ........... IOr
of wh;ch e Xpendffu.’e onIT ma C h |nery,furms h , n gs veh.' C ! es etc ................................................. 14 ........... 173 ........... 12 7 ........... IOO
of which other property, squipment and administrative costs 7 265 ges 806 275
Total operating expenses 773 G 348 3716 1490
GROSS PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 624 3 047 2 230 1245
2% oF 1oir 17% 83% 64% 36%
Taxes 44 651 80 325
% of totaf 6% 94% 20% 80%
GROSS PROFIT AFTER TAXES 580 2 396 2 150 920
% of totan' IQ% 81% 70% 30%

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA Group) which alse includes Retall

and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group,
.2 During 1996, funding costs for the securities trading portfolio were a component of both trading income and income from interest business. Securities trading portiolio interest and
dividends were also a component of trading income. Commencing January 1, 1897, securities trading portiolio interest and dividends became a component of income from interest

business and funding costs for the securities trading portfolio were eliminated as a component of trading income.

Additional Disclosures

© As of December 31

STAFF NUMBERS 1997
America 4932
Europe .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 6539
of thch Sw.lfzer,'and 1574
Asla/Pamﬂc OO OO TSSOV UV URU T PRV 1730
Total 13 201
58




REPORT OF THE GROUP AUDITORS TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON, ZURICH

As Group auditors of Credit Suisse First Boston, we have audited the consolidated financial state-
ments (consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
cash flows and notes to consolidated financial statements) for the year ended December 31, 1997,
The consclidated financial statements as of December 31, 1996, were audited by another audit
firm whose report, dated February 27, 1897, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

The consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Our re-
sponsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We confirm that we meet the legal requirements concerning professional qualification and inde-
pendence,

Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards promulgated by the profession
in Switzerland and with the International Standards on Auditing issued by the International Fede-
ration of Accountants (IFAC), which require that an audit be planned and performed to obtain rea-
sonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement. We have examined, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in the consolidated financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting principtes
used, significant estimates made and the overall consolidated financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with Swiss accounting rules
for banks and comply with the requirements of Swiss law and the accounting regulations pre-
scribed by the Listing Rules of the Swiss Exchange. Furthermore, the consolidated financial state-
ments comply with the European Union accounting directives applicable for banks, taking into
consideration the deviations described in the notes to the consolidated financial statements,

The financial review is in accordance with the consolidated financial statements.
We recommend that the consclidated financial statements submitied to you be approved.
KPMG Klynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler SA
Brendan Nelson Maric Castelnuovo
Chartered Accountant Chartered Accountant

Auditors in Charge

Zurich, February 27, 1998
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The recrganization of the Credit Suisse First Boston Parent Company resulted in the transfer of
the Swiss domestic banking for individuals and corporate clients to Credit Suisse (formeriy Swiss
Volksbank). Only limited historical financial information on the reorganized Parent Company is

available.

Net operating income was CHF 3,208 millien while total operating expenses were CHF 1,268
million. Gross operating profit in 1887 was CHF 1,938 million.

Valuation adjustments, provisions and losses totalled CHF 562 million including credit and
country provisions of CHF 455 million. Extraordinary expenses totalled CHF 164 million.

Net annual profit before extraordinary items and taxes increased to CHF 1,273 miilion. Net
annual profit after taxes and extraordinary items amounted to CHF 1,023 miilion.

At the Annual General Meeting, March 27, 1998, shareholders wiil be asked to approve
the Board of Directors’ proposed apprepriation of retained earnings, which includes a dividend of
CHF 850.2 millicn {CHF 27 per bearer and registered -share).
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' BALANCE SHEET

Change ta the balance
31.12.87 31.i2.96' 1.1.877 sheet after reorganization
ASSETS CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m Yo

Cash 1777 1726 1179 598 507
Money market c|a|ms .....15997 “.'12858 152612 2685 ‘21 3
Due fmm banks ....72 196 ....42 728 56130 16066 286
of whuch securrtlés .’endmg and reverse repurchase agreements 24 6'02 —’—3—-3 s

Due from customers 46 872 65 19

of whrch secunf.'es n’endmg and reverse repurchase agreements

Mortgages

“.‘14 432 ) 14 364 Q 114 147
i B
i RS TR TR TR
e o R e
i s’ S S S W e i
e Q S e e R i
T R R R

Securities a

TOTAL ASSETS 195 584. 203 892 160 354 35 230 22.0
807, 322 -3 -3 -3
16 397 _ -* -

Total subordinated claims

Change to the balance
Notes 31,12.97 31.12.96! 1.1.97% sheet after reorganization
LIABILITIES page CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m %

| 5597 5507 7663 1369
e RS TEER TR
_.3 -3 . } - }
e R TR R
;. 81503 41889 4809 115
-3 _3 -3 -3

ies in respect of money market paper

Total liabilities 186 775- "i'éé"iéus' {52868 34207 224
Reserves agalnst general banking rnsks 330 330 - -

- ST 3 149 g
) 4965 4307 e
T g e
Net annual profit/loss N 1'023 TSiose o ioes -
e eqUI.& i i e
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY 195 584 203 892 160 354 35 230 22.0
Total subordinated liabilities 6226 5 603 -? =3 =3
Tota.'due to Partrcrpatmns and qua.':f:ed shareholders '" 12 350 ?1490 L LT s

! Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA) which also 3 Not available.
ingludes Retail and Frivate Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore * Repossessed real estate and other assets held for resale are now included under
limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group. financial investments rather than under tangible fixed assets. The repossessed real

* The batance sheet after reorganization has not been audited. Rather, it has been estate as of January |, 1997, amounted to CHF 316.2 million; the prior year financial
reviewed by the independent auditors, See notes to consolidated financial statements statements have not been restated.
for description of review,
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OFF-BALANCE-SHEET BUSINESS

Notes 31.12.97 31.12.96" Change Change
OFF-BALANCE-SHEET BUSINESS page CHF m CHF m CHF m %
Contingent hizbilities ST 22953 24789 -1836 -7.4

Irrevocable commijments

- contract volume

Fiduciary transactions

59525

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA) which also includes Retail and Private Banking.
The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.
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' INCOME STATEMENT

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE Notes
FROM ORDINARY BANKING BUSINESS page

1997 1996! Change Change

CHFm CHF m CHFm

Resuits from interest husiness

Interest and dlscount mcome 6 546 6 893 -347 —5.6
Interest and dlwdend mcome from tradlng portfollo .......... 831 AAAAAAAAAA 487 llllllll —156 ....... —320
!nterest and deend mcome from f|nanc|al mvestmer.';és et bt et et eeereaes 200 87 ........... I 13 ........ : 299
:nterest expense —6330 —5653 ........ s 190
Net mterest v 747 ....... e , 1067 ....... Ciea
Results from commnss:on and serwce fee actwlty
COITITT'IISSlOI‘I mcome from endmg actmtles ......... 223 llllllllll 260 .......... —37 ------- —142
Commlss|on f{om Securmes and mvestment transactlons ettt et e avbesrens 456 ....... 1505 _1049 ....... —697
Commlssmns from other semces ROV U SSU OO U O SUU UV UO VYUV 35 .......... QQO ........ - 185 ,,,,,,, ~841
. Co el - ]39 ............ 65 ﬂ468
Net commission and serwce fee income 640 ....... 1846 ..... - 1206 ------- -653
Net trading income? 72 1098 790 308 39.0

Other ordmary mcome

lncome from the sale of fmancsa[ |nvestments

Income from partmpatuons

Sundry ordmary income

Sundry ordinary expenses"’

Net other ordinary income

Net operating income 5 326 -2 120 ~39.8
Operating expenses
-—Q 106 1 860 —646
—1 104 582 —527
Total operating expenses ——3 210 1942 —60.5
Gross operating profit 2116 ~178 -8.4
NET ANNUAL PROFIT/LOSS
Gross cperating profit 2116 -178 -84
—-402 299 -74.4
=750 188 -25.1
Annual profit before extraordinary items and taxes 1273 964 309 32.1
Extracrdinary incaeme 72 427 -380 -89.0
Extraordinary expenditure 72 —2 606 2442 —937
Taxes -1 -e2 873
Net annual profit/loss 1023 -1 2386 2 309 179.5

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA) which also includes Retail
and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented
within the Credit Suisse Group.

? During 1995, funding costs for the securities trading portfoiic were a component of both trading income and
income from interest business, Securities trading portfolio interest and dividends were also 2 component of
trading income, Commencing January !, 1897, securities trading portiolio interest and dividends are included in
income from interest business and funding costs for the securities trading portfolio were eliminated as a conmr
penent of trading income. The prior year financial statements have been restated.
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* As a result of the changes o the accounting principles,
write-downs on repossessed real estate held for resale are
now included under sundry ordinary expenses. The prior

year financial statements have not been restated.




FPROPOSED APPROPRIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
at the disposal of the March 27, 1998, Annual General Meeting

31.12.87 31.12.88 Change

RETAINED EARNINGS CHF m CHF m CHF m
Net annual profit/loss 10230 -1 2857 23087
Proﬁtcamedforwardfromprewousyear 00 ............... ‘76 —76
Retained earnings at the year-end 1023.0 -1 2781 2 30114
ADJUSTMENT FOR PROFIT/LOSS DISTRIBUTION
Transfer from the general legal reserves 0.0 1278.1 -1 278.1
Allocation to reserves
AllocatlontogeneralIegalreserves 693 ............... O O ............ 693
A[Iocat;ontootherreserves .......... 1030 OO ......... 1030
Total allocation to reserves 172.3 0.0 172.3
Dividends in respect of share capital:
: 997 CHFQ?pe rbearershareW|tha nomlnalva!ueof CHF1 OOonthe share ..........................................................................................................

capital of CHF 1 531 600 000 ranking for dividends 4138 0.0 4136
............ C HFQ'?perregusteredsharethhanommalvalueofCHF100

on the share capital of CHF 1 617 160 400 ranking for dividends 436.8 0.0 436.6
Total dividends 850.2 0.0 850.2
Dividends and allocations to reserves 10225 0.0 1022.5
BALANCE TO BE CARRIED FORWARD 0.5 0.0 0.5

1997 DIVIDEND

Bearer shares
(nom. value CHF 100)

Registered shares
(nom. value CHF 100)

Dividend per Credit Suisse First Boston share after acceptance of the above proposals CHF 2760 CHF 27.00
less 35% federal withholding tax CHF -9.45 CHF -9.45
NET DIVIDEND CHF 17255 CHF 17.55

Payable as from March 27, 1998, by cheque or into the accourt of the registered shareholders, or against presentation of the

coupeon number 7 for holders of bearer shares.

Zurich, February 27, 1988
For the Board of Directors

Chairman: Rainer E. Gut

For the Business Units

Business Unit Credit Suisse First Boston
Hans-Ulrich Doerig (until December 31, 1997)"
Allen D. Wheat (as of January 1, 1398)

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer of the Bank
Stephen A.M. Hester

Business Unit Credit Suisse Asset Management

Phillip M. Colebatch
Chief Executive Otficer

1 Since January 1, 1698, Vice Charman ang Chief Risk Officer of the Credit Suisse Group Executive Board.
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* NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Accounting and valuation policies

66

The parent company's financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Swiss Federal Law
on Banks and Saving Banks of 1934 as amended, the Implementing Ordinance on Banks and
Saving Banks and the Guidelines of the Federal Banking Commission Concerning the Preparation
of Financial Statements as amended through October 22, 1997

In general, the parent company’s financial statements are based on the same accounting and
valuation principles used for the consolidated financial statements. However, unlike the consolidat-
ed financial statements, which give ‘true and fair view' of the financial position and the results of
operations, the parent company’s financial statements may include and be influenced by undisclosed
reserves. Undisclosed reserves arise from economically unnecessary write-downs on fixed assets
and participations or through market related price increases which are not reflected in the income
statement. In addition, undisclosed reserves arise from recording excessive provisions and loan
loss reserves or if provisions and loan reserves which are no longer necessary are not written back

to income.

Notes on risk management
For information on the Bank's policy with regard to risk management and the use of financial

derivatives, see notes to consclidated financial statements.




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the balance sheet

BONDS AND MORTGAGE BONDS ISSUED BY CSFE (PARENT COMPANY)

Callable ssue amount Subparticipation

Redemption Coupon Year of issue from in mithons in millions

IO e e D DO et

.. 32006 T b8a%
L Perpelual

' Subordinated bonds.

* Credit hnked notes issued by Credit Suisse First Boston Guernsey branch,

3 To banks within Credit Suisse Group. Registered shares
{nom. value CHF 20)

DETAILS OF CREDIT SUISSE GROUP SHARES

Quantity Book value
HELD BY CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON' (CHF 1000)
Securities trading portfolic
Portioho aiDecember311996(f0rmerSKA) ............................................................................................................................. 6607865 ....... 908581
Portiolio at December 31, 1297 4 749 002 1073 274

¥ Net current positions in Credit Suisse Group shares are subject 1o delivery commitments under denvatives contracts. When these commitments are taken into account, the CSFR
parent's nel propnetary holdings of Credit Suisse Group shares are msignificant.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the balance sheet

PLEDGED AND ASSIGNED ASSETS AND 51.12.67 31.12.98
ASSETS UNDER RESERVATION OF OWNERSHIP CHF m CHF m CHF m CHF m
Book value of which Book value of which

assets were not freely availabie of claims used of claims

nd financial investments for iombard loans

Financial assets to cover option exchange margin requirements

Borrower's mortgage notes used to provide mortgage cover in the amount of
Borrower's mortgage notes used to provide savings bank cover in the amount of

Other?

TOTAL

! Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA} which also includes Retail and Private Banking,
The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.
* Notably, assets pledged as securily for Credit Suisse First Boston's international business activities in comptiance with local regulations,

LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF OWN PENSION FUNDS

On the balance sheet date, total liabilities in respect of the bank's own pension funds amounted to CHF 757 million
(former SKA 1996: CHF 403 million).

Recoveries, Charges
Impact of endangered to income  Write-backs
transfer of interest, Netcharges  statement  credited to
WRITE-DOWNS operations Specific  Reclassifi- currency 1o income (extra- income
AND PROVISIONS/ Total and heldings Total write-downs cations  differences statement ordinary) statement Total
RESERVES AGAINST 31.12.98° 1.1.97 31.12.97
GENERAL BANKING RISKS CHFm CHF m CHF m CHFm CHFm CHFm CHFm CHFm CHFm CHFm

Write-downs and provisions for
default risks (debtor and
country risks) 6918 -5 446 472 -127 -32 Q 455 0
Write-downs and provisicns for .
i 68 -67 i 0 -2 ¢ 35 0

58 0 56 o] 0 0 0
Provisicns for taxes and
deferred taxes 208 -3 203 -85 19 133 0
Other provisions 77 29 106 -83 -i8 103
Total write-downs and
provisions 7 325 -6 487 838 -326 ~5 1 726, 0
Less direct charge-offs against
gpecific assets 6285 -5889 436
Total write-downs and
provisions shown R
in balance sheet 1030 -628 402 - 829
Reserves against AR
general banking risks 330 1} 330 0 4] 1] 0 0 0 ' -330

! Refers to the previaus legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA) which also includes Retail and Private Banking,
The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.
? Transfer to Credit Suisse.
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*NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the balance sheet

1997 199¢"

Total Capital ranking Total Capital ranking
COMPOSITION OF Quantity nominal value for dividends Quantity nominal value for dividends
SHARE CAPITAL CHF CHF CHF CHF

" Paid-up capital
Bearer shares at CHF 100 -
Capi‘ta| an January 1 ‘ 15 316 000 I 531 600 OOO 15 316 OOO 1 531 600 OOO
Capltal on December 31 15 316 000 1 531 800 000 1 531 600 000 15 316 000 1 531 600 000 1 531 600 000
Reglstered shares at CHF 100 . .
Capltal on January 1 ' 6171 604 . 817 160 400 . 6 171 604 617 160 400
Capital increase on R
February 6, 1997 10 000 000 ‘7 OOO OOO OOO
Capital on December 31 l 1 617 160 400 .. 1617 160 400 6 171 604 617 160 4060 617 160 400
TOTAL SHARE CAFITAL 3148 760400 3148 760 400 2148 760 400 2 148 760 400
1997 198867 1995"

Total Total Total
AUTHORISED AND Quantity neminal value CQuantity nominal value Quantity nominal value
CONDITIONAL CAPITAL CHF CHF CHF
Authorised share capital ) !
Registered shares at CHF 100 )
Authorised share capntal AR
on January 1 1 000 000 000 1 000 000 160 0CO 000, 17 076 1 707 600,
In accordance W|th the
decision of the AGM of
March 80 1995 1 000 000 100 COC GO0
in accordance W|th the dec:sxon
of the Extracrdinary General
Meeting of Decembe 996: 10000 000 1 000 000 000

Authorised share capita — s . .
on December 31 o ’ 0o . T 0

10 000 000 1 000 COO0 000 1 000 000 100 000 000
Conditional share capital : e N
on December 31 L + B 0 0 0 0

31.12.97 21.12.98°
Totat Total

MAJOR SHAREHQLDPERS AND Quantity naminal value Share Quaniity nominal value Share
GROUPS OF SHAREHOLDERS? CHF % CHF %
Bearer shares at CHF 100
with voting rights
Credlt Su|sse Grcup 15 314 681 1 531 468 100 9999 15 313 61 1 1 531 361 100 99 98
Other shareholders 1 819 131 900 0 01 ‘2 389 238 900 0 OQ
Total 15 316 000 1 531 600 000 100.0 15 316 000 1 531 600 000 100.0
Registered shares at CHF 100
with voting rights
Credlt Sunsse Group 16 171 293 1 617 1'29 300 99 99 6 171 284 617 128 400 99 99
Other shareholders 31 1 3‘] 100 0 01 320 39 OOO 0 01
Total 16 171 604 1 617 160 400 100.0 % 171 604 617 160 400 100.0

' Refers to the previous legal enlity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA) which also includes Retail and Private Banking.
The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented within the Credit Suisse Group.

2 The BZ Group and the Olayan Group hold 795% and 5% respectively of Credit Suisse Group registered shares and therefore
indirectly exceed 5% of all voting rights of Credit Suisse First Baston.

% In accordance with the decision of the AGM of March 31, 1893, the exercise penod for the remaining authorised share capital
expired on March 30, 1995.
The remaining CHF 1707600 worth of shares lapsed as of this date.

4 Cancelled at the Extraordinary General Meeting of December 4, 1996.
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NOTES'TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the balance sheet

1997 1998' Change Change
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY CHF 1000 CHF 1000 CHF 1000 %
Beginning shareholders’ equity
Share capital 3 148 760 2148760 1000000 465
General legal reserves "4306708 4922664 515936 -125
o I s SRS SRR L

Reserves agamst general bank:ng nsks

Retalned earnlngs

330 454

330 454

984 745

O

_984 745

of wmch Camed forward fmm prewous year O 6 595 —6 595 —JOOO
Ofmeh net annua,'pmﬁt O 978 150 ..,,._9?8 150 —JOOO
Total beginning shareholders’ equity 7 785942 12 230 623 -4 444 681 -36.3
Other changes to/transfers from reserves - - - ~

Payments

Dividend -637 190 537 180 -
Net annual profit/loss 1022931 -1285672 2308603 -
Total shareholders’ equity as of December 31 -8 808 873 10 407 761 -1 598 888

Share capstal

General egal reserves

Other reserves

of wh.'ch reserves set as:de for SVB d.'wdends m kmd

Reserves agasnst general bankmg nsks

Retamed earnings

of which net annual profit/loss

i

[-022.931;

. 2148 760

-1285672

1 000 000

2308 603

IMPACT OF RESTRUCTURING

CHF 1000

Shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 1996

“10°407 761;

Share capitat

Retained earnings

+1.000 DOO:

~4 241 0005

1978117

Total impact of restructuring?

~~2 621,819,

Shareholders’ equity as of January 1, 1997

7785 942

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstait (SKA) which also includes Retail and Frivate
Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented within the
Credit Suisse Group.

? The net CHF —2,622 million represents a dividend in king of Credit Suisse Group of CHF —4,922 million and &
contribution in kind of Credit Suisse First Boston, the former CSFirst Boston Ing., of CHF 2,200 million.
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_NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the balance sheet and off-balance-sheet business

CAPITAL INCREASE
As described on page 62 the Bank increased its share capital. The former Statutory Auditors
examined the capital increase in accordance with the provisions of the law and issued the follow-

ing report.

Auditors’ report to the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse First Boston on capital
increase

As auditors of your company we examined in accordance with Article 6521 of the Swiss Code of
Obligations the capital increase report dated February 6, 1897, presented by yourself. Our exami-
nation was conducted in accordance with professionally accepted auditing standards in Switzer-
land. We confirm that we meet the legat requirements concerning professional qualification and
independence.

Based on our examination we conclude that the information provided in the capital increase
report is complete, accurate and in accordance with Swiss law and the resolution of the General
Meeting of Shareholders of Credit Suisse First Boston (formerly Schweizerische Kreditanstalt)
dated December 4, 1996.

Revisuisse Price Waterhouse AG

Peter Ochsner Pascal Perimann

Auditors in Charge
Zurich, February 6, 1997

CLAIMS ON AND LIABILITIES TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES, 31.12.97 31,12.96' Change Change
AND LOANS TO MEMBERS OF THE BANK'S GOVERNING BODIES CHFEm CHFm CHF m %
Claims on afflhaied ccmpanles 6 072 6012 80 1.0
L:ablhhes to affshated compames 28 865 1515 27 350 -
Loans to members of the bank s governmg bodies 0 232 -232 -100.0

31.12.97 31.12.9¢' Change Change
FURTHER DETAILS ON SELECTED BALANCE SHEET ITEMS CHf m CHF m CHF m %

Flre msurance value

Rea estate

Other ﬁxec’ aSSEtS e e

31.12.97 31.12.98° Change Change
BREAKDOWN OF FIDUCIARY TRANSACTIONS CHF m CHF m CHF m Yo
F:ducnary placements with third-pariy institutions 573 17 509 -16 936 -86.7
iduciary samamarts P PR s 1 963 Ses T e
F;dumaryplacementsando{herf|duc|arytransac1|ons ................................................................... R ST oS __523
Total fiduciary transactions 775 19 187 ~18 412 -95.9

' Relers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstait (SKA} which alse includes Retail
and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented
within the Credit Suisse Group.

? Includes CHF 692 million repossessed real estate which are now included under finanaial investments rather
than under tangible fixed assets.
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«NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Additional information on the income statement

1967 1596" Change Change
ANALYSIS OF INCOME? CHF m CHF m CHF m %
BREAKDOWN OF NET TRADING INCOME
Income from securities trading 256 260 -4 -15
Incomefromformgnexchangeandbanknotetradmg ............................................................................... 763 .......... o e s
mcomefrompremousmetaftradmg .................................................................................................. e s P _194
mcome from tradmg m mterest rate mstruments b ettt aeeeeeenaes 17 ............... 6 ,,,,,,,,,,,, o ieas
G trad:ng e o 5 -
Total net frading income 1098 790 308 39.0
1997 1996" Change Change
ANALYSIS OF EXPENSES CHF m CHFm CHF m %
BREAKDOWN OF VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS, PROVISIONS AND LOSSES
F’rowsmns and valuatlon adjustments for default nsks (debtor and country rlsks) 455 597 -142 ~23.8
Provnsmns and valuatlon adjustments for other busmess risks 47 ............. 1 ............. 46 46000
.l._ osse S ............................................................................................................................................................... 60 el _92 o o
e actual !osses e 18 ........... b o —890
Total valuation adjustments, provisions and losses ’ 562 750 -188 -25.1
ANALYSIS OF EXTRAORDINARY 1997 1996’ Change Change
INCOME AND EXPENSES CHE m CHFm CHFm %
BREAKDOWN OF EXTRAORDINARY INCOME ’ )
Gains realised from the dispasal of participations 0 10 -
S extraordma ry L e perr e s
of which write-backs from non-specific bad-debt provisions for Vertika AG 200  -—400 1000
Total extraordinary income 427 -380 ~89.0
BREAKDOWN OF EXTRAORDINARY EXPENSES
Restructuring cosis as a result of the Credit Suisse-SVB merger 66 -66 -100.0
192 ........ _192 ..... v
S _1000 ..... PP
osy -967  -1000
80 —80 _1000
P iions for taxes B e e _1000
Other extraordmary expenses 164 Tl 59 o
Total extraordinary expenses 164 2 606 -2 442 -93.7

' Refers to the previous legal entity, Schweizerische Kreditanstalt (SKA) which also includes Retail
and Private Banking. The comparability of the figures is therefore limited due to the restructuring implemented
within the Credit Suisse Group.

* During 1996, funding costs for the securities trading portfolio were a compenent of both trading income and in-
come from interest business. Securities trading portfolio interest and dividends were alsc a component of trading
income. Commencing January 1, 1997, securities trading portfolio fnterest and dividends are included in income
from interest business and funding costs for the securities trading porticlio were eliminated as a component of
trading income. Pricr year financial statements have been restated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. » Additional Disclosures

As of December 31 1997
Staff numbers

Switzerland 1425
D S
Total staff 2574

Offices

Switzerland a

Ab.road R =
Total offices 44
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*REPORT OF THE STATUTORY AUDITORS TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON, ZURICH

As statutory auditors of Credit Suisse First Boston, we have audited the accounting records and
the financial staternents (balance sheet, income statement and notes to financial statements)

for the year ended December 31, 1997 The financial statements as of December 31, 1986, were
audited by another audit firm whose report dated February 27, 1997, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those statements.

The financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the
legal requirements concerning professional qualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards promulgated by the profession
in Switzerland, which require that an audit be planned and performed to ebtain reascnable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. We have exam-
ined, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant estimates made and the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion,

in our opinion, the accounting records and the financial statements and the proposed appro-

priation of retained earnings comply with the law and the company’s articles of asscciation.
We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

KPM@G Klynveid Peat Marwick Goerdeler SA

Brendan Neison Mario Castelnuove

Chartered Accountant Chartered Accountant

Auditors in Charge

Zurich, February 27, 1998
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